CUBIC **Trafficware**

Traffic Responsive Operation Using ATMS.now Centralized Masters



February 2021

522 Gillingham Sugar Land, Texas 77478 Phone: (281) 240-7233 Fax: (281) 240-7238

© Copyright 2021 Cubic | Trafficware All rights reserved.

Terms of Use Agreement

USE OF THIS SOFTWARE MANUAL IS SUBJECT TO THESE TERMS OF USE.

Agreement

Please read this *User Agreement* carefully before using the information provided in this *Manual*. This Agreement explains the terms and conditions governing the use of this *Manual* ("Terms of Use"), and it is your responsibility to read and understand them. By using this *Manual*, you expressly agree to be bound by these *Terms of Use* and to follow them as well as all applicable laws and regulations governing the *Manual*. If you do not agree to be bound by these *Terms of Use*, you may not access or use this *Manual*. Cubic | Trafficware reserves the right to change these *Terms of Use* at any time, effective immediately upon posting the *Manual* from our company website. By continuing to use the *Manual* after we post any such change, you accept the revised *Terms of Use*. If you violate these *Terms of Use*, Cubic | Trafficware may terminate your use of the *Manual*, bar you from future use of the *Manual*, and take appropriate legal action against you.

Permitted Use

You agree that you are only authorized to read, view and retain a copy of pages of this *Manual* for your own personal use, and that you will not duplicate, download, publish, modify or otherwise distribute the material on this *Manual* for any purpose other than to review product information for personal use or the use of a government or non-profit organization.

No Commercial Use

Users may not use this *Manual* for any commercial purposes such as to sell merchandise or services of any kind. You must obtain our prior written consent to make commercial offers of any kind, whether by advertisements, solicitations, links, or by any other form of communication. Cubic | Trafficware will investigate and take appropriate legal action against anyone who violates this provision.

Copyright

All content included on this *Manual*, including text, graphics, logos, icons, images, and software is the property of Cubic ITS Inc. or its content suppliers and is protected by United States and international copyright laws. This compilation (that is, the collection, arrangement and assembly) of all content on this *Manual* is the exclusive property of Cubic ITS Inc. and is protected by U.S. and international copyright laws. Cubic ITS Inc. reserves the right to revise the pages of the *Manual* or withdraw access to them at any time.

Trademarks

The logo and trademarks that appear throughout the *Manual* belong to Cubic ITS Inc., its affiliates or third-party trademark owners, and are protected by U.S. and international trademark laws. Without express prior written permission, you may not display or use in any manner, the logos or trademarks. Nothing in this *Manual* shall be construed as granting any license or other right to the intellectual property or other proprietary rights of Cubic ITS Inc., its affiliates or any third party, whether by estoppels, implication or otherwise. All contents of the *Manual* are: © Copyright 2021 Cubic ITS Inc. or its licensors. All Rights Reserved.

Disclaimer of Warranty

YOU UNDERSTAND AND EXPRESSLY AGREE THAT YOUR USE OF THE MANUAL AND THE INFORMATION FOUND THERE IS ENTIRELY AT YOUR RISK. CUBIC | TRAFFICWARE AND ITS AFFILIATES AND LICENSORS MAKE NO WARRANTIES OR ANY REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WARRANTIES OF TITLE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, NON-INFRINGEMENT OR OTHER VIOLATION OF RIGHTS IN RELATION TO THE AVAILABILITY, ACCURACY, VALIDITY, COMPLETENESS, RELIABILITY OR CONTENT OF THESE PAGES AND/OR THE MANUAL. CUBIC | TRAFFICWARE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, LOST PROFITS OR FOR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THIS MANUAL, EVEN IF CUBIC | TRAFFICWARE HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, YOU HEREBY RELEASE AND FOREVER WAIVE ANY AND ALL CLAIMS YOU MAY HAVE AGAINST CUBIC | TRAFFICWARE, ITS AFFILIATES AND LICENSORS FROM LOSSES OR DAMAGES YOU SUSTAIN IN CONNECTION WITH YOUR USE OF THE MANUAL.

SOME JURISDICTIONS DO NOT ALLOW EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN WARRANTIES OR LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY, SO THE ABOVE LIMITATIONS OR EXCLUSIONS MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU. THE LIABILITY OF CUBIC | TRAFFICWARE WOULD IN SUCH CASE BE LIMITED TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW.

Applicable Law

These *Terms of Use* and all legal issues related to the *Manual* shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to conflict of laws principles. You agree that any dispute involving these terms of use or this *Manual* will be heard in a court with jurisdiction in Fort Bend County, Texas. You further agree that the prevailing party in any legal action will be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney's fees incurred in connection with that action. If for any reason a court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision of these Terms of Use to be unenforceable, the remaining terms will continue in full force and effect.

Entire Agreement

These *Terms of Use* are the final and entire agreement between you and Cubic | Trafficware with respect to this subject and replace any and prior or contemporaneous understandings or agreements, written or oral, regarding the subject matter. Any waiver of any provision of these Terms of Use shall be effective only if in writing and signed by an authorized representative of Cubic | Trafficware.

Table of Contents

1	OVERVIEW	5
2	CENTRAL MASTER DEFINITION AND SETUP	6
	2.1 DEFINING THE CENTRAL MASTER	6
	2.2 CENTRAL MASTER PARAMETERS	7
	2.3 Assigning Intersections to the Master Sub-System	9
	2.4 THE MASTER SCHEDULER – SELECTING MASTER ACTIONS BY TIME-OF-DAY	10
	2.5 CENTRAL MASTER TEST CONFIGURATION	11
	2.6 CENTRAL MASTER FAIL CONFIGURATION	12
	2.7 THE ATMS.NOW CONTROL HIERARCHY	14
3	RUNNING THE CENTRAL MASTER FROM ATMS.NOW	17
4	SYSTEM DETECTORS	
	4.1 System Detector Programming	
	4.1.1 Station ID and Detector #	18
	4.1.2 Detector Group	19
	4.1.3 Smooth	19
	4.1.4 Full Rate Values	19
	4.1.5 Detector Failure Thresholds	
	4.1.6 Substitution Values (Sub. Val)	
	4.1.7 Scalar	
	4.2 Relationship Between Volume and Occupancy	21
5	TRAFFIC RESPONSIVE OPERATION	
	5.1 TR CALCULATIONS FROM VOLUME + OCCUPANCY (V+O)	
	5.1.1 Smoothed Vol% and Occ%	
	5.1.2 TR Flow Values for the Inbound, Outbound and Cross Detector Groups	24
	5.1.3 Cycle, Offset and Split Parameters	24
	5.1.4 Cycle, Offset and Split Index	25
	5.2 EXAMPLE: CREATING INDICES USING VOLUMES	
	5.2.1 Raw data	
	5.2.2 Normalized data	
	5.2.3 Smoothed value	
	5.2.4 Threshold checks	
	5.2.5 Scalars	
	5.2.6 Flow Parameters	
	5.2.7 Cycle, Offset, Split parameters	
	5.2.8 Cycle Offset and Split indexes chosen via the Threshold tables	
	5.3 TR PATTERN SELECTION USING THE CYCLE, OFFSET AND SPLIT INDEX	
	5.4 RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN INBOUND, OUTBOUND AND CROSS STREET CONDITIONS	
	5.4.1 Traffic Responsive Lookup Table Examples	
	5.5 TR MODE TABLE	
	5.6 THE TRAFFIC RESPONSIVE MASTER COMMAND TABLE	
6	CENTRAL MASTER STATUS	

CIC (CRITICAL INTERSECTION CONTROL)	
 CIC (CRITICAL INTERSECTION CONTROL) 7.1 EXAMPLE USING CIC (CRITICAL INTERSECTION CONTROL) 	40
 CIC (CRITICAL INTERSECTION CONTROL) 7.1 EXAMPLE USING CIC (CRITICAL INTERSECTION CONTROL) 	

1 Overview

ATMS.now provides the ability to launch a *Central Master* from the ATMS.now *Scheduler* to implement traffic responsive operation for a subsystem of up to 32 local controllers. This feature is useful for systems that have **direct communication** to all units in the field, negating the need for on-street closed loop masters. The operation and database for the *Central Master* is identical to the TS2 981 and 2070 master except that *Central Masters* do not support sub-master features found in the on-street masters.

This manual provides an overview of the setup and configuration of a traffic responsive system using centralized masters. In addition, the CIC feature in TS2 controllers is also presented as a way to implement adaptive split control as an alternative to the *Split Index* adjustments under traffic responsive.

2 Central Master Definition and Setup

This chapter outlines the steps needed to define a *Central Master* in ATMS.now and how to configure the master database. Chapter 3 will show how to launch the *Central Master* from the ATMS.now *Scheduler*.

2.1 Defining the Central Master

You can define a central master from the ATMS.now main toolbar like you would define any other controller in your system. From the Home Module, simply select the Action : Configuration/Create Definition as shown below. This will create a new *Central Master* database. You will edit information on the ATMS Overview screen.

ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45.25 - City
Navigator 🛛 🖓
Home
Actions
Database
Real-Time
Utilities
Configuration
Create Definition
Create From
Edit Definition
Delete Definition
Edit Turn/Phase/Directions
Edit Intersection Link Speed
Congestion Level
User Defined Detector Groups
Search

Provide a *Controller ID*, *Name* and *Controller Type* for the *Central Master* as shown to the right. You must select the *Controller Type*, "**ATMS TR Master 61.x 2070**".

It is not important to specify a com *Drop* as the *Central Master* will derive all communication setup from the local controllers assigned to it.

You also **do not need** to modify the controller definition of the local controllers assigned to the *Central Master*. TS2 locals must specify the "Master" field under definitions when they are assigned, but this is not necessary for locals assigned to *Central Masters*.

Required Information	tion								
C	ontroller ID	7		Auto-ID					
Co	ontroller Name	ID 7 Test Central	master						
C	ontroller Type	ATMS TR Master	ATMS TR Master 61.x-2070 🗸						
D	rop	1 : E-NET-5001		~					
Sj	ynchroGreen								
Optional Informati	ion								
Master			\sim						
Group	Existing			N					
Delay Receive	1000		Delay Transm	it O					
X-Ref (INV) #	0								
Location				Phone					
Latitude 29	9.6169378688891	Azimuth	0						
Longitude -9	95.6265880352785			Prefix					
Altitude 0				Postfix					
Opticom			Preempt	Firmware OS:					
# of Units (0 ~ ID1	0	~ ~	None V					

2.2 Central Master Parameters

Select the *Central Master* from ATMS.now like you would select any local database. Select the Central Master from the List view and select the Action : Database/Edit as shown below.

avigator	₽	0		1 1 - 4							
angata	- 5	Cont	roller	LIST						75 Fou	na
Home	_ <u></u>			£7							
Actions	0000	Alarro	Statue	ID	Name	Elex Group	Group	Pattern			
Database	<u>u</u>			520	Eldridge and Greenway	192169101200	2	Ties droup	Eldridge Suste	1 decini	
Edit			×	500	Eldridge and tree inway	102.100.101.200	2	Chulufala	Eldridge Syste		
View			2	531	Eldridge and W. Airport	192.168.101.200	2	City Wide	Eldridge Syste		r N
Download			0	532	Eldridge and Florence	192.168.101.200	2	City wide	Elanage Syste		r.
Compare			0	600	US 59 and Sugar Creek-Dairy Ashford	192.168.101.200	3				P
Coordination Diagnostics			0	601	US 59 and US 90A	192.168.101.200	3				P.
Сору			0	801	US 59 and New Territory	192.168.101.200	4		Sweetwater Blv		4
Real-Time			0	802	US 59 and University NB	192.168.101.200	4		Sweetwater Blv		1
Utilities			0	803	University and Lexington	192.168.101.200	4		Sweetwater Blv		4
Configuration			0	999	Sugarland STD8 Default Template	192.168.101.200	1				٩
Search			0	1000	ATMS Central Master		1	Γ		Ja	1
								_	Database C		ſ
									Utilities C	ompare	
									Configuration • C	ony	
Name								_	Connigaración y C	opy	1
<alb td="" 💌<=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></alb>											
Flex Group											
<all></all>											
Group											
Master ID											
Master ID											-
Туре											
<alb td="" 💌<=""><td>-</td><td></td><td>4</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>J</td></alb>	-		4								J
Devek All Diver News										<u> </u>	
heset All Find Now		List M	lap								-

Note that when you edit the *Central Master* database, the menu tabs are different from the local intersection databases. Select the *Parameters* tab and the overview screen will display the various master parameters.

🚦 ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45	5.25 -	City of Su	gar Land / naz	tec								_ 8
Navigator 🛛 🕂		Contro	oller Databa	se Editor -	- Paramet	ers						
Home	l eld C	<u> 6</u>	B									
Actions	looser	Parms	Accum Sample	Scan Override	Station Type	Min Change	Local Sample	Master ID	TOD Interval	Pattern Interval	Det Event Polling	1000-ATMS Cer
Edit		Parms 1	0	0	MST	15	15	0	0	0	ON	
View												
Upl <mark>(Edit)</mark> Download												
Compare												
Coordination Diagnostics												
Copy Beal-Time												
Utilities												
Configuration												
Search												
ID												
<all></all>												
Name												
<all></all>												
Flex Group												
		Table 1										
KAIP Master ID												
		Actions	V Pookup V. Co	mmand Table V	Crossing Cus	la Offeet V C	iuolo. V. Diou Pl-	n V Dau E	lan Link V E	able Alarme V F	inable Europee V E	ail Config. /
Tupe		Master	Command Ma	inimariu Table	V Matrix V M			meters / S		able Alams A c		
<alb< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>												
		Data	ibase Configuratio	n Standard	•	Filter <all></all>	•			Apply	OK	Cancel
Heset All Find N	- E	By Controller	By Entry									

You must program the STATION TYPE to be MST to enable TR (Traffic Responsive) operation.

Make sure that the LOCAL SAMPLE TIME is set to the same value as the detector sample time programmed in your local controllers under MM->5->8->1 (5, 10 or 15 minutes are common values).

The MIN CHG TIME is the minimum amount of time that the *Central Master* will wait between pattern changes before making a new pattern change. If you set MIN CHG TIME equal to the LOCAL SAMPLE TIME, the master could potentially change patterns every sample time depending on the data uploaded from your system detectors and how you have configured traffic responsive. Therefore, you should set the MIN CHG TIME higher than the LOCAL SAMPLE TIME to make sure that the system is stable if your pattern changes become too frequent.

PATTERN INTERVAL is the minimum time that the *Central Master* will wait between pattern changes before making a new pattern change. You should program this in association with MIN CHG TIME.

Det Polling must be turned ON to enable system detector polling in the Central Master.

ACCUM SAMPLES only applies to system detector reports generated from an on-street master. Originally it was designed for a field master to save RAM by accumulating samples, **it is not required to be programmed for a** *Central Master* and should be set to "0".

Note: Because the *Central Master* and the TS2 981 and 2070 on-street master share the same databases, you will need to ignore some of the programming in the database. This manual will become your guide as to which field is needed to configure the *Central Master* for traffic responsive operation.

2.3 Assigning Intersections to the Master Sub-System

The local *Station ID*'s are the only fields required to define the *Central Master* sub-system. The com interface for each ID (serial *Drop* or *IP Address*) is provided in the controller definition for each local. Therefore, the Central Master only requires the *ID* address of each local assigned to the sub-system.

The *Type* field is not required for *Central Masters*. This field only applies to on-street masters and sub-masters to maintain compatibility with legacy Cubic | Trafficware closed-loop systems.

ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45.25 - City of Sugar Land / naztec									
Navigator 🛛 🕂	Ē	Control	ler Da	tabase	Editor - Sul	bsystem			
Home	eld Ch	<u>d</u> 🙆 🛽	7						
Actions	0000	Station	ID	Tune	Version	1000 ATMS Car			
Database	<u> </u>	Station 1	3401	100					
View		Challen D	2402	100					
Upload		Station 2	3402	LUC	DEFAULT				
Download		Station 3	3403	LOC	DEFAULT				
Compare		Station 4	3404	LOC	DEFAULT				
Coordination Diagnostics		Station 5	Π	LOC	DEFAULT				
Lopy Roal Time		Chatian C	0	1.00	DEFAULT				
Utilities		Station 6	0	LUC	DEFROET				
Configuration		Station 7	0	LOC	DEFAULT				
		Station 8	0	LOC	DEFAULT				
Search	- 1	Station 9	0	LOC	DEFAULT				
		Station 10	0	LOC	DEFAULT				
<alb< th=""><th></th><th>Station 11</th><th>0</th><th>LOC</th><th></th><th></th></alb<>		Station 11	0	LOC					
Name			0	100	DEFAGET				
<alb th="" 💌<=""><th></th><th>Station 12</th><th>U</th><th>LUC</th><th>DEFAULT</th><th></th></alb>		Station 12	U	LUC	DEFAULT				
Flex Group		Station 13	0	LOC	DEFAULT				
<alb th="" 🗾<=""><th>1</th><th>01101114</th><th>0</th><th>Line</th><th>DECAULT</th><th></th></alb>	1	01101114	0	Line	DECAULT				
Group		Table 1							
<all></all>									
Master ID		\ Actions \	Backup	X Comma	nd Table 🏌 Cros	ssing Cycle Offset 🐰 Cycle 🐰 Day Plan 🗴 Day Plan Link 🐰 Enable Alarms 🐰 Enable Events /			
<all></all>		Fail Config	X Mas	ter Commar	nd X Master Tes	t Config X Matrix X Mode Table X Offset X Parameters X Scheduler X Split X Subsystem /			
Туре		System De	ets /						
<alb th="" 🗸<=""><th></th><th>-</th><th></th><th>-</th><th></th><th></th></alb>		-		-					
		Databa	ase Confi	guration	Standard 🗾	Filter <all> Apply OK Cancel</all>			
Reset All Find Now		ly Controller	By Entry						

The version field is used to insure proper communications with the local. Selections include:

DEFAULT	This is the selection that you will most likely choose for
	ATMS.now versions prior to 1.5.45.70.
TSV61	Used if the local is a TS2 controller running version 61.x
2070V65	Used if the local is a 2070 controller running version 65.x
2070V76	Used if the local is a 2070/ATC controller running version 76.x
2070V85	Used if the local is a 2070/ATC controller running version 80.x or V85.x/Scout

2.4 The Master Scheduler – Selecting Master Actions by Time-of-Day

The *Master Scheduler* is identical to the *Local Scheduler* and follows the NTCIP ASC 1202 as discussed in the Cubic | Trafficware controller manual. The time-of-day schedule is evaluated once per minute and uses the system date to select a *Day Plan* from the annual schedule. Next, the master evaluates the *Day Plan* using the current time-of-day to find the time-of-day *Action* for the sub-system.

You vary the *Action* table in the *Central Master* schedule to control whether the master sets the SYS pattern by the time-of-day schedule (TBC) or from traffic responsive (TRI).



An example of Action Tables for the Central Master is shown below.

- Selecting Action 1 by Day Plan enables traffic responsive pattern selection (Coord=TRI)
- Selecting Action 2 by Day Plan enables master TBC and sets the master SYS pattern downloaded to the local controllers to pattern# 3 (Coord=TBC)
- Selecting Action 3 enables traffic responsive operation, but overrides the calculated *Offset Index* to 1 (Off Ovr = 1).
- Selecting Action 4 enables traffic responsive and overrides the CMD# (see section 4.1.5)

👭 ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45.25 - City	of Sı	igar Land /	/ naztec					<u></u> 8
Navigator 🛛 🕂	<u>.</u>	Control	ller Dat	abase	Edit	or -	Action	IS
Home	eld Ct		5					
Actions	00	A - 1'	Carad	D-11	C	<u></u>	04.0	
Database	ġ	Action	Loora	Pattern	uma #	Um	Urruver	1000-ATMS Cer
Edit		Action 1	TRI	U	U	1	U	
View		Action 2	TBC	3	0	1	0	
Download		Action 3	TRI	0	0	1	1	
Compare		Action 4	TBI	0	1	1	0	
Coordination Diagnostics		Action E	TPC	0	d	-	-	
Сору		Action 5	IBL	0	ч	1	U	
Real-Time		Action 6	TBC	0	0	1	0	
Utilities Configuration		Action 7	TBC	0	0	1	0	
		Action 8	TBC	0	0	1	0	
Search		Action 9	TRC	0	0	1	0	
ID 🔺		AC(0110	TRO	0	0	-	0	
<all></all>		Action 10	TBC	U	U	1	U	
Name		Action 11	TBC	0	0	1	0	
<alb td="" 🗸<=""><td></td><td>Action 12</td><td>TBC</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>1</td><td>0</td><td></td></alb>		Action 12	TBC	0	0	1	0	
Flex Group		Action 13	TBC	0	0	1	0	
		A	THE	0	0	н	0	
Group		Table 1						
<al></al>								
Master ID		Actions /	Backup)	Comma	and Tabl	еX	Crossing	Cycle Offset 🐰 Cycle 🐰 Day Plan 🐰 Day Plan Link 🐰 Enable Alarms 🐰 Enable Events /
<all></all>		Fail Color	J X Maste	er Comma	ind X I	vlast	er Test Co	nfig X Matrix X Mode Table X Offset X Parameters X Scheduler X Split X Subsystem /
Туре		System D	ets /					
Beset All Find Now		Datab	ase Config	uration	Standar	d	•	Filter All> Apply OK Cancel
	B	y Controller	By Entry					

2.5 Central Master Test Configuration

Recall that TEST OpMode (MM->2->1) in the local controller overrides all other coord modes and sets the *Active* pattern. The on-street master and *Central Master* provides a similar TEST configuration to override the time-of-day (TBC) pattern of all of the secondary controllers assigned to the sub-system.

The *Master Test Configuration* is normally placed in stand-by (SBY) to pass control to the master *Scheduler*. However, you can override the system by setting *Coord Mode* and *Pattern* in *Master Test*.

👭 ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45.25 - City o	of Sugar I	and / nazteo								_ 8
Navigator 🛛 🕂	II Cor	ntroller Da	tabas	e Edit	or - N	laster Test Config				
Home	S 💽	3 Ø								
Actions	8 C or	fia Coord	Pattorn	Cred #	Offeet					1000 ATMC C
Database					Olisec					TUUU-ATMS Cer
Edit	Lonr	gi SBY	U	0	U					
View										
Download										
Compare										
Coordination Diagnostics										
Сору										
Real-Time										
Utilities										
Configuration										
Search										
ID 🗾										
<all></all>										
Name										
Flex Group										
<all></all>										
Group	Tabl	91								1
<all></all>										
Master ID	\ Acti	ons 🛛 Backup	X Comn	nand Tab	le X C	Crossing Cycle Offset 🐰 Cyc	le 🕺 Day Pla	an 🕺 Day Plan Link 🎽 Enabl	e Alarms 🕺 Enable f	Events /
<all></all>	Fail	Config 🗶 Ma	ster Comm	nand 🕌	Master	est Config / Matrix / Mo	de Table 🗶 I	Dffset X Parameters X Sche	duler X Split X Sub	osystem /
Type	\Sys	tem Dets_/				45				
		Database Conf	iguration	Standar	d 🔽	Filter <all></all>	•	Apply	ок	Cancel
Reset All Find Now	By Cont	oller By Entr	y							

2.6 Central Master Fail Configuration

The *Master Fail Configuration* defines how the master sub-system responds to failure conditions. Typical master system failures included com fails, system detector failures, etc. The *Failure Override* configuration is set when the master detects a failure in the closed loop system. The threshold (number of failures) for each alarm and the fallback response for each failure condition are user selectable. A closed loop system failure is invoked for the following alarm conditions:

- Communication Errors typically reverts all secondary's back to their to local time-of-day schedule
- System Detector / Station Failures/ Station Offline the number of failures typically controls whether the system reverts back to time-of-day operation
- > Stop Timing the user can revert the system to free if enough stop time errors are detected
- > Local Alarm Failures Local Alarms can revert the system back to time of day operation

➤ Coord Failure – If coordination fails the master can revert the system back to time of day operation The user must program 2 screens for Failure override to occur. They are the *Fail Config* screen and the *Backup* screens.



Please note that the Backup screen corresponds directly to the Failure Configuration Screen and the data that is programmed on this screen is the error threshold data. Once that threshold has been met or exceeded, the system will revert back to the operation (pattern) programmed in the Fail Config table. The following list

shows the failure and the corresponding Backup number.

Backup #	Failure Mode
1	Comm Errors
2	Station Failure
3	System Det
4	Stop Timing
5	Coord Fail
6	Local Alarm #5
7	Local Alarm #6
8	Local Alarm #7
9	Local Alarm #8
10	Station Ofline

As an example the programmed data as shown below sets the *Central Master Fail Configuration* to TBC pattern# 0 whenever any of the following faults occur within the specified *TX Error Time* (in minutes):

- One or more Station ID's offline
- Four or more system detectors failed
- Stop timing alarm generated at one or more intersections

If any of these conditions occur, the master will send SYS pattern 0 down to each local controller in the subsystem. This effectively forces each controller to run STBC (System TBC) and revert back to the TBC schedules defined in the local time-of-day schedules. You should provide a backup time-of-day schedule in each local controller even if you plan to run traffic responsive all the time. This will allow the master to fail the system and revert it back to local TBC.



Intersections that lose communication with the master automatically "fall back" to TBC after the NTCIP *Fallback* timer expires. The locals still in communication with the master will revert back to TBC when the *Master Test Configuration* fails and the master sets the SYS pattern to pattern # 0. At that point, the entire system will revert back to TBC, but will be in SYNC off of the internal time base in each local. Cubic | Trafficware controllers can maintain acceptable clock accuracy for extended periods following a Comm failure allowing the sub-system to remain synchronized until communication is restored.

Keep in mind that the number of *Comm Errs* can be quite high if the interconnect system is "noisy" and the TX ERR TIM is assigned a long value (say 10 minutes). A *Comm Errs* threshold of 50 (5 com errors per minute during the 10 minute TX ERR TM) may be reasonable depending on the type of communications used if the number of retransmits is quite high. The thresholds for the other categories can vary greatly with the number of stations (secondary controllers) assigned to the closed loop system. Also, a system with a large number of redundant system detectors can tolerate more system detector failures than a system with a few critical detectors.

When a controller is properly communicating with the central master, you will see the controller report **S-TBC** Status to ATMS.now. When a controller reverts to TBC due to communications issues, you will see the controller report **B-TBC** Status to ATMS.now. Programming the NTCIP *Fallback* timer is critical to avoid **B-TBC** from occurring. The local controller's *Fallback* Timer should be programmed to insure that the central master has enough time to send the pattern down to the local. For example, if the master's *Min Change Time* is programmed to 15 minutes, the *Fallback* timer in the local has to be at least 15 minutes (900 seconds) to insure proper communication. If a local controller is operated by more than one central master scheduled consecutively, the *Fallback* Timer on the local has to be long enough to accommodate the communications time between masters. If both masters have a *Min Change Time* of 15 minutes, the *Fallback* timer in the local has to be at least 30 minutes (1800 seconds) to insure proper communication.

2.7 The ATMS.now Control Hierarchy

The user should be thoroughly familiar with the hierarchy of the ATMS.now control system as discussed under section 1.3 of the ATMS.now Operations Manual. In general, the SYS pattern passed down to the local intersection controllers can originate from either a *Central Master* or *Field Master* (but not both). The master SYS pattern will override the TBC pattern generated by the local time-of-day schedule if SYS is not in stand-by (SYS = 0).

The hierarchy of control within a *Central* or Field Master is as follows:

- 1) The *Master Test Configuration* drives SYS and overrides the *Master Fail Configuration* and the *Master Scheduler* if *Master Test* is not in stand-by, SBY (section 2.5).
- 2) The *Master Fail Configuration* drives SYS and overrides the *Master Scheduler* if any of the failure conditions are met and *Master Fail* is not in stand-by, SBY (section 2.6).
- 3) The *Master Scheduler* sets SYS to the pattern calculated by traffic responsive if the current *Action* is TRI (Traffic Responsive). Otherwise the *Master Scheduler* sets SYS to the TBC pattern# specified in the *Action* table for the current action.
- 4) If SYS is zero, then the *Central Master* is in standby and the locals are in STBC.





SYS is currently driving the active pattern on the MM->7->2 status screen above (under a system or field master). If the master goes to stand-by (SYS = 0), TBC will select pattern 10 as the active pattern. However, a REMO pattern from central will override both SYS and TBC but not local TEST mode. Preempt and preempt triggers have the highest priority over all coordination modes because preemption overrides all patterns.

Note that the hierarchy of control within the *Central Master* is essentially the same as the hierarchy within the Cubic | Trafficware *Field Master*.

3 Running the Central Master From ATMS.now

Chapter 2 outlined the steps necessary to define and configure a Central Master in ATMS.now.

The *Central Master* does not automatically run once it is created. It must be scheduled to run from the *ATMS.now Scheduler* by accessing the Definitions Module and choosing Scheduler/Create Schedule.

Note that the *Central Master* does not automatically set the date and time of the local controllers assigned to the master subsystem. You will need to provide a separate schedule in ATMS.now to update the local clocks (schedule "Download Real-Time").

In the example below, Master 3400 will be launched on weekdays between 06:00 - 09:00. Under this scheme, it is possible to define a separate master that runs at other times of the day. Therefore, it is possible to vary the intersections assigned to the sub-system (dynamic group assignment) and provide two independent traffic responsive lookup procedures by time-of-day.

Note that the *Type* selected must be *ATMS.now Master* and the database must be selected by *Controller* (not by *Master*).

# ATMS.now - Version 1.5	JS.25 - City of Sugar Land / naztec
Navigator 🛛 🕂	New Scheduler
Definitions	
Actions	Schedule Details
Alarm	
Alarm Notification	Description I aunch Master 3400- ATMS Test Sustem Master
Backup and Archive	
Controllers Offline	Type ATMS.now Master
Camera Tour	Bu Constroller
Congestion	
Device	Select ATMS Central Master
Device Event Notification	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Device Flex Group	
Device and Event Locati	Start Stop
Event	
Flex Group	Time Range 06 🔽 00 🔽 09 🔽 00 🔽
GIS	
Group	Date Range 5/ 5/2010 V 1/ 1/2050 V
Incident Trigger	
Jurisdiction	Days 🗖 Select All
Message	
Monitor	
Scan Builder	Interval Continuous
Report Criteria	
Scheduler	
List Schedules	
Create Schedule	
Edit Schedule	
Delete Schedule	
Instant Report	
User	
User Distribution	
User Group	Apply OK Cancel

Once you hit Apply or OK, the Master will be scheduled to run as per the days of the week and time frame that was selected.

4 System Detectors

System detector volume and occupancy data is used in the traffic responsive calculations to generate the SYS pattern downloaded to the local controllers under TRI. The *Central Master* uses a table lookup procedure to select cycle, offset and split (COS) values for TRI calculation. Any of the 64 local intersection detectors may be assigned to any of the 48 system detectors in the *Central Master*.

4.1 System Detector Programming

The 48 system detectors are programmed from the following menu in ATMS.now. Each system detector is assigned one primary detector and an optional secondary (or backup) detector that is substituted if the master cannot upload the primary detector data.

🕴 ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45.25 - City of Sugar Land / naztec													
Navigator 🛛 🕂	<u>_</u>	Controlle	r Datab	ase Edito	or - Systen	ו Dets							
Home	eld Cho	<u> 6</u>											
Actions	- OSe	Det	Primary ID	Primary Det	Secondary ID	Secondary Det	Smooth	Full Rate Vol	Full Rate Occ	Fail High Vol 1	Fail High Occ 1	F _	1000-ATMS Cer
F dit	P	Detector 1	3401	1	3401	2	50	70	20	100	100	0	
View		Detector 2	Ω	0	0	0	Ω	0	Ω	Ω	Ω	0	
Upload		Detector 2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Download		Delectors	0	0	0	0	U	0	U	0	0	-	
Coordination Diagn		Detector 4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Сору		Detector 5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Real-Time		Detector 6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Utilities		Detector 7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
		Detector 8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Search		Detector 9	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
ID L Alb		Detector 10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Name		Detector 11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
		Detector 12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
, Flex Group		Detector 13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
<all></all>	1	Detector 14	n	n	Ω,	n	n	n	Π	n	n	n I	
Group		I I										•	1
<all></all>		Table 1											
Master ID													
<all></all>		Actions X B	ackup 🗶 C	ommand Table	e 🗶 Crossing C	Cycle Offset 🐰 C	ycle X D	ay Plan 🕺 Day	/ Plan Link 🐰 I	Enable Alarms 🐰	Enable Events	(Fail	Config /
Туре		Master Com	mand 🖉 M	aster Test Cor	nfig X Matrix X	Mode Table X	Offset X	Parameters X	Scheduler X	Split X Subsyste	m System Det	s /	
		Databas	e Configurati	ion Standard	•	Filter <all></all>	•]		Apply	OK		Cancel

Specific programming for System detector 1 is shown below:

Det	Primary ID	Primary Det	Seco	ondary ID	Secon	dary Det	Smoot	h Full Rat	e Vol	Full F	Rate Occ	Fail High Vol	1	Fail High	Occ 1
Detector 1	3401	1	3401		2		50	70		20		100		100	
							1	1			1				
Det	Fail Low V	ol 1 🛛 Fail Lov	0cc 1	Fail Hig	jh Vol 2	Fail Hig	h Occ 2	Fail Low ¹	Vol 2	Fail L	.ow Occ 2	Fail High Vo	13	Fail High	Occ 3
Detector 1	0	0		0		0		0		0		0		0	
			_					1	_				_		_
Det	Fail Low Vol 3	Fail Low 0	cc 3 9	Sub Vol 1	Sub Oc	c 1 Su	b Vol 2	Sub Occ 2	Sub	Vol 3	Sub Occ 3	8 Scaler Vol	Sc	aler Occ	Det Gr
Detector 1	0	0	;	30	30	30		30	30		30	1	1		IN

4.1.1 Station ID and Detector

Detectors are referenced by station *ID* and *Det* # (1-64). A station ID of 0 indicates that the detector is not active and will not be considered in the traffic responsive flow calculations. A primary (Pri) detector must be assigned if a secondary (Sec) detector is assigned. However, a secondary detector is not required. Note that primary and secondary detectors may be assigned from different local controllers.

4.1.2 Detector Group

System detectors can be assigned to the IN bound, OUT bound or CROSS street detector *Group*. This association is used in the traffic responsive calculation to calculate cycle, split and offset (COS) paramters.

4.1.3 Smooth

The *Smooth* value (0 - 100) controls how each volume and occupancy sample is averaged with the previous sample. An entry of 0 disables smoothing and each new detector sample replaces the previous detector sample. An entry of 100 does not average the current sample until the next sample is taken.

4.1.4 Full Rate Values

Separate *Full Rate* values are provided to scale volume and occupancy samples. The range of *Full Rate* is 0-255 vehicles per minute for the volume entry and 0-100 percent for occupancy entry. A zero *Full Rate* value can be used to disable either volume or occupancy (or both).

The *Full Rate* <u>volume</u> parameter will be used to calculate the normalized volume value by comparing the measured raw volume data to the Full Rate Volume parameter and expressing the ratio as a percent. Therefore, you should choose a Full Rate volume parameter value that is greater than the largest expected raw volume measurement. If however, you choose a Full Rate Volume parameter that is too high, you will limit your usable range of normalized values. Therefore, it is recommended that you choose a Full Rate value somewhere between the maximum measured raw volume and the maximum theoretical volume.

You can calculate the maximum theoretical volume using the saturation flow. In this case, the saturation flow rate of one travel lane is generally accepted as 1800 - 2000 vehicles/hour for one lane. This corresponds to a *Full Rate* value of 30 - 33 vehicles/minute at full saturation. Remember that the ratio of green/cycle length (g/C) will reduce the actual maximum volume to less than this theoretical rate.

For example, if you are measuring a maximum volume of 1200 vehicles per hour, this would correspond to a measured maximum value of 20 vehicles per minute. In this case, you should set your Full Rate Value somewhere between the maximum measured value of 20 vehicles/minute and the maximum theoretical value of 30-33 vehicles/minute. A rule of thumb that some agencies use, is to set the Full Rate Value at the maximum measured value divided by an adjustment factor of 0.8. In the given example, we would divide 20 vehicles/minute by 0.8 to calculate a Full Rate Volume parameter of 25. Using these values, we would observe a normalized volume value of 80% when system detectors are measuring 20 vehicles/minute. This allows some room for traffic growth over time and unexpected traffic events to exceed the maximum measured value of 20 vehicles/minute.

The occupancy entry should be chosen as the maximum expected occupancy for that system detector for each minute. The *Full Rate* <u>occupancy</u> parameter scales the measured occupancy value to 100%. Stop line detectors can be programmed to measure occupancy on green + yellow of the phase called by the detector. In these cases, *Full Rate* <u>occupancy</u> is a function of the split time of the phase associated with the detector. Therefore, values of 20 - 40% may be appropriate for stop line detectors if occupancy is measured during G+Y to estimate the degree of saturation of the phase.

Note that NTCIP requires that occupancy is measured with a 0.5" resolution, so the integer range of 0-200 represents a raw occupancy value of 0.0-100.0. The master compares the 0.5" precision value (< 100.0) with the specified *Full Rate* value to weight occupancy and calculate the *Full Rate* % value.

4.1.5 Detector Failure Thresholds

Failure ">" defines a threshold of volume or occupancy above which the detector is considered to be failed. Failure "<" defines a threshold of volume or occupancy below which the detector is considered to be failed. Keep in mind that smoothed values are used to test these failure ranges.

If you want to disable *Failure Thresholds* then accept the default "Failure > 100" and "Failure < 0" for volume and "Failure > 200" and "Failure < 0" occupancy. However, if you wish to test these thresholds, you must make sure that the substitution values are not zero unless you wish a failed detector to be permanently removed when it reaches the UNDEF state (see next section).

4.1.6 Substitution Values (Sub. Val)

Three sets of Substitution Values are provided for each system detector. MTBC actions can be used to select the Substitution Values by time-of-day. These volume and occupancy values are substituted in the traffic responsive calculations should both primary and secondary system detectors fail. If these values are zero when a detector fails, the detector will be removed from service.

If the *Central Master* polls a system detector and the raw volume of occupancy is outside of the *Failure Threshold*, then the first failure will be flagged as RETRY_1 and the substitution value used as the smoothed value. If the second poll also fails the thresholds, it will be marked as RETRY_2.

If the value from four successive system detector polls fails the *Failure Threshold*, the system detector will be permanently removed from the master poll and marked as undefined (UNDEF) if the substitution value is zero. If the substitution value is not zero, then the master will continue to poll the detector and substitute values for the smoothed sample until the *Failure Thresholds* are satisfied.

4.1.7 Scalar

Scalar values are provided to weight volume and occupancy for each detector. Scalar values in the range of 0 - 9 can be used to weight the relative importance of volume and occupancy for each detector and also can weight one detector's V+O higher than another detector V+O.

Scalar values can be set to "0" to disable either volume or occupancy in the V+O calculation.

4.2 Relationship Between Volume and Occupancy

When setting up the *Central Master*, it is often useful to relate percent occupancy to percent scaled volume. This relationship can be found through the following equations:

<u>Volume (veh / min)</u> Speed (Miles/min) = Density (veh / mile) = Density (veh / mile)

A density of 240 veh/mile is derived assuming an average vehicle length of 22 feet. (5280 feet / 22 (feet/veh) yields approximately 240 vehicles per mile at full-saturation).

Occupancy may be related to volume through the following formula:

<u>100 * Volume (veh/mile)</u> = % Occupancy 240 (veh/mile) * Speed (Miles/min)

Typically, for a given speed, full-scale volume is correlated to full-scale occupancy if both are to be used to control traffic. At a speed of 30 miles per hour (30/60 = 0.5 Miles/min):

Volume (Veh/Min)	%Occupancy
2	1.66
5	4.16
10	8.33
15	12.5
30	25

5 Traffic Responsive Operation

Traffic responsive control systems originated in the 1970's with the federal UTCS project. This project has set the standard for traffic responsive operation for the last 30 years. System detectors are defined as inbound, outbound or cross street. Volume and occupancy are combined using weighting factors to compute V+O for the inbound, outbound and cross-street approaches within the network. UTCS based systems use computed V+O values to select a traffic responsive pattern using a table lookup procedure.

Closed loop systems appeared in the 1980's and many of the centralized UTCS features were distributed to onstreet masters. Most signal systems today continue to implement traffic responsive operation in essentially the way envisioned under UTCS.

5.1 TR Calculations From Volume + Occupancy (V+O)

Each master controller collects volume and occupancy data from up to 48 system detectors in the master subsystem. Raw volume and occupancy data is first smoothed to "average" the data with the previous sample. Then the smoothed data is weighted using the Full Rate% values supplied by the user to calculate Vol% and Occ% for each detector. Vol% and Occ% are then weighted using Scalers to compute *TR Flow Values* for the *Inbound*, *Outbound* and *Cross*-directions.

The *TR Flow Values* are used to calculate *Cycle*, *Offset* and *Split Parameters*, which are used to lookup a *Cycle*, *Offset* and *Split Index*. Lastly, the indexes are used to select a pattern from the TR pattern tables. These TR calculations are defined in this section and are summarized as follows:



5.1.1 Smoothed Vol% and Occ%

Traffic volume and occupancy measures vary greatly from one sample to the next, especially if the sample period is less than 10–15 minutes. Typically, 10 or 15-minute samples are "smoothed" or "averaged" with the last "smoothed" sample.

The *Smooth* value is assigned for each detector as discussed in section 4.1.3. The formula used to "smooth" each volume and occupancy sample is given below.

Note that if the *Smooth* value is "0", then the current sample is not averaged with the previous volume or occupancy sample and no smoothing takes place.

$$SmoothedValue = \frac{(NewValue * (100 - SmoothVal) + OldValue * SmoothVal)}{100}$$

Vol %

Volume % compares the sample volume (converted to a one minute flow rate) with the *Full Rate* value discussed in section 4.1.4. Volume *Full Rate* is a full-scale reading of flow rate (in vehicles / min). Since flow rate is also a function of a variable green time (g/C) provided over the detector, *Volume Full Rate* % must be approximated.

Assume that volume *Full Rate* is 18 veh/min for a smoothed 15-minute sample. The measured flow rate is 150 vehicles sampled over the 15-minute period. Note that volume must first be converted to a one-minute flow rate because *Full Rate* is expressed in vehicles per minute.

Vol (rate per minute) = 150 veh / 15 minutes = 10 veh / min

Vol % = measured flow rate / full rate % = 10 / 18 = 56%

Occ %

Occupancy % is a measure of total vehicle presence over the detector during the sampling period. Full occupancy at 100% is equivalent to a constant call on the detector during the entire sampling period. NTCIP calls for occupancy to be expressed as an integer value in the range of 0-200 so that the resolution of occupancy can be measured within 0.5 %. However, occupancy is always 100% if occupancy if a detector call is constant over the entire sample period.

Cubic | Trafficware controllers provide a "plus" detector feature called <u>occupancy-on-green</u> that allows occupancy to be measure only during the green or green + yellow clearance interval (G+Y). This feature allows occupancy to be measured from a stop-line detector during G+Y only when traffic should be moving over the detector. Occupancy is not accumulated during the red interval when standing queues are stopped over the detector. Occupancy-on-G+Y is measured during a portion of the sample time roughly equivalent to g/C.

Occupancy Full Rate% is a full-scale reading of occupancy expressed as 0-100%. Since occupancy is a function of the green time (g/C) over the detector and occupancy-on-G+Y feature, *Ocupancy Full Rate*% must be approximated.

For example, if a detector samples occupancy -on-G+Y for the phase called by the detector, then the maximum occupancy per cycle is roughly equivalent to the split time of this phase. If *Occupancy Full Rate%* is 60% and measured occupancy is 12%, then the Occ% value is calculated as follows:

Occ % = measured occupancy / full rate = 12 / 60 = 20%

5.1.2 TR Flow Values for the Inbound, Outbound and Cross Detector Groups

Each system detector is assigned to the *Inbound*, *Outbound* or *Cross* detector group and assigned an occupancy *Scalar* (kx) and a volume *Scalar* (cx).

TR Flow Values are computed for each detector group using the formula below. Each *TR Flow Value* (*Inbound*, *Outbound* and *Cross*) is a weighted average of the computed *Vol*% and *Occ*% values for the detectors sampled for each detector group.

$$Flow Value = \frac{(k1*Occ_1 + k2*Occ_2 + ... + kx*Occ_x) + (c1*Vol_1 + c2*Vol_2 +cx*Vol_x)}{k1 + k2 + + kx + c1 + c2 + + cx}$$

Note: *Scalers* express the relative weight of Vol% and Occ% for detector assigned to a group (inbound, outbound and cross). Increasing a *Scalars* value for a detector does not increase the *TR Flow Values* the same amount. Increasing the *Scalar* value only increases the relative weight of that detector compared to the other detectors in the group.

Vol% and Occ% are combined to calculate a *TR Flow Value* for the *Inbound*, *Outbound* and *Cross*- detector groups. In the next two sections, we will see how the measured *TR Flow Values* are used to calculate a *Cycle*, *Offset* and *Split Parameter* for each detector group. A table lookup procedure is then used to select the *Cycle*, *Offset and Split (COS) Index* from these parameters.

5.1.3 Cycle, Offset and Split Parameters

The *Cycle*, *Offset* and *Split Parameters* are calculated from the *TR Flow Values* as follows. These parameters range from 0 to 100% and are used to perform a table lookup to select the *Cycle*, *Offset and Split Index*.

Cycle Index = Max. Inbound V+O <or> Max. Outbound V+O

Offset Index = ((Outbound – Inbound) / (Outbound + Inbound)) * 50 + 50

Split Index = ((Cross - Cycle Index) / (Cross + Cycle Index)) * 50 + 50

5.1.4 Cycle, Offset and Split Index

The TRI calculations perform a table lookup using the calculated *Cycle*, *Offset* and *Split Parameters* to select a *Cycle*, *Offset* and *Split Index*. Separate threshold tables are used depending on whether the *Cycle*, *Offset* and *Split Parameters* are increasing or decreasing to reduce the hysteresis or "bounce" in successive data samples.

Two threshold values are specified for each table lookup. One threshold is used if the *Parameter* is increasing compared with the last sample. The other threshold is used if the *Parameter* is decreasing compared with the last sample.

Below are example tables for the *Cycle Index* table lookup. Suppose the current *Cycle Index* is "4" and that *Cycle Parameter* has increased during the last 15 minute sample period from 52% to 55%. A table lookup will be made from the increasing table that will retain the *Cycle Index* at "4" because 55% is less than the threshold of 56% necessary to change to Cycle Index "5" in the <u>increasing table</u>.

CYCLE LENGTH THRESHOLDS

CYCLE LENGTH INCREASING
FREE to CYCLE 1 : 25
CYCLE1 to CYCLE2 : 35
CYCLE2 to CYCLE3 : 41
CYCLE3 to CYCLE4 : 48
CYCLE4 to CYCLE5 : 56
CYCLE5 to CYCLE6 : 99

G	CYCLE LENGTH DECREASING
5	CYCLE1 to FREE : 17
5	CYCLE2 to CYCLE1 : 28
1	CYCLE3 to CYCLE2 : 36
8	CYCLE4 to CYCLE3 : 40
6	CYCLE5 to CYCLE4 : 49
9	CYCLE6 to CYCLE5 : 99

Note that once the *Cycle Index* moves to "5", that the *Cycle Parameter* would have to drop to 49% (from the decreasing table) to move back to *Cycle Index* "4". Without separate threshold tables, the TR system could become unstable if the calculated *Cycle Parameter* began oscillating between 55 and 56. Providing two thresholds reduces this "bounce" or hysterisis or "bounce" in the *Parameter* values.

The COS traffic responsive thresholds are edited in ATMS.now using four menu screen tabs: Cycle, Offset, Split and Command. They are shown on the next page.

ATMS.now - Version 1.5	.45	5.25 -	City	of Suga	ir Land /	naztec													
Navigator 🛛 🕂		n C	onti	roller	Datab	ase E	ditor -	Cycle	e										
Home			10																
Actions				1.21	120	2.21	220	241.00	240	4 E luce	AED	E C Inc	ECD						
Database 🔺	Ω		_yc	1-2 inc	1-2 Dec	2-3 Inc	2-3 Dec	3-4 Inc	3-4 Dec	4-5 inc	4-5 Dec	5-6 Inc	3-6 Dec						
Edit			yci	30	25	70	65	90	85	100	100	100	100						
View																			
Download																			
Compare																			
Coordination Diagn																			
Сору																			
Real-Time																			
Utilities																			
Configuration																			
Search																			
ID																			
<alb< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>																			
Name																			
<alb< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>																			
Flex Group																			
<alb< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>																			
Group																			
<alb< th=""><th></th><th>T</th><th>able 1</th><th>J</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>		T	able 1	J															
Master ID																			
<all></all>		4	Action:	s 🗶 Bac	∶kup∦ C	Command	Table X	Crossin	g Cycle O)ffset 👌	Cycle	Day Pla	n X Dayl	Plan Link 🏾)	(Enable.	Alarms 🛛	Enable Ev	ents X	Fail C
Туре			Maste	r Comma	and X M	laster Tie	st Config	X Matri	(X Mod	e Table)	(Offsers	(Param	neters X !	Scheduler	X Split X	Subsyste	m X Syste	m Dets	/



ATMS.now - Version 1.	5.4	5.2	5 - City	y of Sug	jar Land	/ nazte	:C												
Navigator 4		ī	Con	trolle	r Datal	basel	Editor	- Spli	t										
Home		eld Ch	<u></u>	3 🐼															
Actions		000	C.D.	1.2 lpa	1.2 Dec	22100	22000	24100	24000	4 E Inc	4 E Dee	E C Inc	E E Doo						
Database 🔺		<u>a</u>	op o t	1-2 Inc	1-2 Dec	2-3 Inc	2-3 Dec	3-4 Inc	3-4 Dec	4-0 Inc	4-5 Dec	3-6 Inc	3-6 Dec						-
Edit			Sp 1	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100						
View																			
Upload Download																			
Coordination Diagn																			
Copy																			
Real-Time																			
Utilities																			
Configuration																			
Search																			
ID																			
<all></all>																			
Name																			
<all></all>																			
Flex Group																			
<alb< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>																			
Group				_															
<alb< th=""><th></th><th></th><th>Table</th><th>1</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>			Table	1															
Master ID																			
<alb< th=""><th></th><th></th><th>\ Actic</th><th>ins X Ba</th><th>ackup X</th><th>Comman</th><th>id Table</th><th>(Cross</th><th>ing Cycle</th><th>Offset)</th><th>(Cycle)</th><th>(Day Pl</th><th>an 🕺 Daj</th><th>y Plan Link</th><th>X Enable</th><th>e Alarms</th><th>X Enable</th><th>Events</th><th>🛛 Fail C</th></alb<>			\ Actic	ins X Ba	ackup X	Comman	id Table	(Cross	ing Cycle	Offset)	(Cycle)	(Day Pl	an 🕺 Daj	y Plan Link	X Enable	e Alarms	X Enable	Events	🛛 Fail C
Туре			Mas	ter Comn	nand / I	Vlaster T	est Config	X Ma	trix X Mo	de Table	X Offset	X Para	imeters X	Scheduler	Split	(Subsys	tem X Sy	vstem Det	s /
ZAIN	11															4			

ATMS.now - Version 1.5	.45.2	5 - City of	Suga	r Land / naztec
Navigator 🛛 🕂	-	Contro	ller	Database Editor - Command Table
Home	eld Ct	6	27	
Actions	00	0140	-	
Database 🔺	ä	LMD	Plan	
Edit		CMD 1	0	
View		CMD 2	0	
Dowpload		CMD 3	0	
Compare		CMD 4	0	
Coordination Diagn		CMD 5	0	
Сору		CMD 6	0	
Real-Time		CMD 7	0	
			0	
		LMD 8	0	
Search		CMD 9	0	
ID		CMD 10	0	
		CMD 11	0	
Name		CMD 12	0	
<alb< th=""><th></th><th>CMD 13</th><th>0</th><th></th></alb<>		CMD 13	0	
, Flex Group		CMD 14	0	
<all></all>		CMD 15	0	
Group		CMD 16	Π	
<alb< th=""><th></th><th>Table 1</th><th></th><th></th></alb<>		Table 1		
Master ID				
<all></all>		Actions	(Bac	kup Command Table Crossing Cycle Offset
Туре		Master (Comma	and χ Master Test Conh 3 χ Matrix χ Mode Table χ

It is not required that every parameter of the lookup tables be used. In this example, only 4 *Cycle Indexes* are actually used because the *Cycle Parameter* will never reach a value of 100 (CYCLE5 and CYCLE6 will never be reached).

Also note that split thresholds are all 100. In this case, the system does not provide different patterns based on the difference between arterial and cross street detectors. These distinctions will become clear in the next section when we look at populating the lookup tables with patterns.

5.2 Example: Creating Indices using volumes

The following steps are done in order by the algorithm that creates the Cycle, Offset and Split indexes. The steps below represent how the volume index is chosen. Please note that the same steps are used to create the occupancy index.

5.2.1 Raw data

Raw data is gathered by counting actuations over your sample period. The reported value is counts per sampling period.

5.2.2 Normalized data

The raw data is normalized into a number that will vary between 0 and 100. It is a percentage of the full Flow Rate value, thus it is based on the Full Rate volume programming.

5.2.3 Smoothed value

The *Smooth* value (0 - 100) controls how each volume and occupancy sample is averaged with the previous sample The normalized data is smoothed using the detector smoothing factor. The first time the TR central master is turned on, only the raw data is used. Subsequent values are then calculated using the smoothing formula as discussed in section 5.1.1. Remember that a smoothing factor of "0" will always use the normalized data for each sampling period.

5.2.4 Threshold checks

Next detector failure thresholds are checked for each system detector. If a detector fails based on the thresholds programmed for each system detector, then the substitution value will be used for that detector, if programmed. The substitution value should be set up using flow percentages. Warning if your Full Rate values are set too low, your calculated normalized values will exceed the thresholds and substitution values will be used.

If the value from four successive system detector polls fails the *Failure Threshold*, the system detector will be permanently removed from the master poll and marked as undefined (UNDEF) if the substitution value is zero. If the substitution value is not zero, then the master will continue to poll the detector and substitute values for the smoothed sample until the *Failure Thresholds* are satisfied.

5.2.5 Scalars

Now the algorithm is ready to combine individual detector flow values to develop the overall flow values. The weight assigned to each detector is determined by its scalar. The first step is to rank each system detector's importance against the other system detectors in your corridor. Scalars are the mechanism to do this. The user should start by choosing the least used detector and setting its scalar to "1" and scale the other detectors form this base. Scalar values can range from 1-9. A scalar value of zero will eliminate the detector from this flow value calculation

5.2.6 Flow Parameters

Once scaled, flow parameters are calculated via the formula as shown in section 5.1.2.

5.2.7 Cycle, Offset, Split parameters

Next the cycle offset and split parameters are calculated using the formulas shown in section 5.1.3, once the Flow parameters are established. Their values will range from 1-100 percent.

5.2.8 Cycle Offset and Split indexes chosen via the Threshold tables

The user must program a threshold table to choose the Cycle offset and Split index. Each threshold table is set up to choose a index based on the Parameter percentages. Separate threshold tables are needed depending on whether the *Cycle*, *Offset* and *Split Parameters* are increasing or decreasing to reduce the hysteresis or "bounce" in successive data samples.

Two threshold values are specified for each table lookup. One threshold is used if the *Parameter* is increasing compared with the last sample. The other threshold is used if the *Parameter* is decreasing compared with the last sample.

5.3 TR Pattern Selection Using the Cycle, Offset and Split Index

The traffic responsive pattern is selected using a table lookup procedure once the *Cycle*, *Offset* and *Split Index* values have been calculated. The user is responsible for populating these tables with pattern numbers. The pattern selected by the lookup essentially becomes the SYS pattern that is downloaded to the controllers defined in the master sub-system.

Five separate *Offset Tables* (COS matrices) can be programmed from ATMS.now using any of the 48 pattern numbers provided in the controller *Pattern Table*. In addition, you may program pattern 254 for free operation and pattern 255 for automatic flash operation within these tables.

Navigator Controller Database Editor - Matrix Actions Offset Int C1 S1 Int C1 S2 Int C1 S3 Int C1 S4 Int C1 S5 Int C1 S6 Int C2 S1 Int C2 S3 Int C2 S4 Int C2 S5 Int C2 S6	🖗 ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45.25 - City of Sugar Land / naztec										
Home Image: Constraint of the second se											
Actions Offset Int C1 S1 Int C1 S2 Int C1 S3 Int C1 S4 Int C1 S5 Int C2 S5											
Database Offset 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 Edit Offset 2 0 <th>S1</th>	S1										
View Offset 2 0 <th< th=""><th>Ξ,</th></th<>	Ξ,										
Dipload	-										
Download Offset 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0											
Compare Diffset 5 D	-										
Copy	-										
Real-Time											
Search											
Name											
Flex Group											
<all> Table 1</all>											
Master ID											
All>	'ail C										
Type Master Command X Master Test Config Matrix Mode Table X Offset X Parameters X Scheduler X Split X Subsystem X System Dets	/										

The example below assigns 16 patterns to *Offset Table* 1. This table is selected by the traffic responsive lookup procedure if the calculated *Offset Index* is "1". The menu shown maintains compatibility with the TS2 and 2070 on-street master databases. Please ignore the TRE (*Traffic Responsive External*) programming parameters (i.e. columns that begin with "Ext") which only applies to on-street sub masters. *Central Masters* only implement TRI (*Traffic Responsive Internal*) because sub-master operation from the central level is irrelevant.

Offset	Int C1 S1	Int C1 S2	Int C1 S3	Int C1 S4	Int C1 S5	Int C1 S6	Int C2 S1	Int C2 S2	Int C2 S3	Int C2 S4	Int C2 S5	Int C2 S6
Offset 1	1	1	1	1	1	1	2	2	3	3	4	4
Offset	int C3 S	1 Int C3 S2	Int C3 S3	Int C3 S4	Int C3 S5	Int C3 S6	Int C4 S1	Int C4 S2	Int C4 S3	Int C4 S4	Int C4 S5	Int C4 S6
Offset 1	5	5	6	6	7	7	8	8	9	9	10	10
n Offeet		- 1 John 5 52	- 2 Jot C5 S3	2. lot C5 S4	Lot C5 S5	lot C5 S6	Int CE S1		Int C6 53	Int CB S4	Int CE S5	lot CB SB
Oliset		1 111 00 02		/ 110004	110000	110000	Inc CO OT	111 00 02	1110000	111 CO 34	110000	110
Offset 1	11	11	12	12	13	13	14	14	15	15	16	16

Suppose the current *Cycle Index* is "4" and the *Split Index* is "2". Using the table lookup above, the TR timing plan selected by this lookup would be pattern# 8.

If the *Master Scheduler* selects a time-of-day *Action* calling for TRI (Traffic Responsive), then the master will download SYS=8 to all local controllers in the subsystem. All local controllers in the sub-system with *Closed Loop* turned ON will run SYS pattern# 8 overriding the local TBC schedules.

This traffic responsive (or SYS) pattern will remain in effect for the *Minimum Change Time* discussed in section 2.2. At the end of the *Minimum Change Time*, traffic responsive will be allowed to implement a SYS pattern based on updated *Cycle*, *Offset* and *Split Indexes*.

The calculation of the COS Indexes and the table lookup procedure is the essence of traffic responsive.

5.4 Relationship Between Inbound, Outbound and Cross Street Conditions

This section summarizes the relation between the *COS Indexes* defined in section 4.1.3 and the *Inbound*, *Outbound* and *Cross* detector groups.



1) Offset Index Compares Inbound vs. Outbound Flow

The *Offset Index* is used initially to select the *Offset Table* for the table lookup.

Offset Index is the relationship between the highest *Outbound* compared with the highest *Inbound* V+O.

Patterns assigned to *Offset Table 1* should provide offsets that favor the inbound direction on the arterial.

Patterns assigned to *Offset Table 5* should provide offsets that favor the outbound direction on the arterial.



2) Cycle Index is a Function of Arterial V+O

Patterns within the same row typically share a common cycle length. The *Cycle Length* of the patterns assigned to each row increases as V+O of the *Inbound* and *Outbound* detectors increases.

3) Split Index Is Proportional to Arterial vs. Cross

Patterns within the same row share a common cycle length. The *Split Index* can be used to vary the split times in the patterns to favor the arterial or cross street movements.

In addition, CIC (*Critical Intersection Control*) provides an alternate way to adjust split times at the local controller level. .

5.4.1 Traffic Responsive Lookup Table Examples

The following lookup table examples illustrate ways to configure traffic responsive for different conditions. Keep in mind that if Pattern # 0 places SYS in stand-by (SBY) and reverts the locals to their local time-of-day schedules (STBC). Also, pattern 254 is reserved for free operation and Pattern 255 is automatic flash as specified by NTCIP.

No Inbound / Outbound Preference or Arterial / Cross Street Preference

Off	set	#1				
	1	2	3	4	5	6
1	1	1	1	1	1	1
2	2	2	2	2	2	2
3	3	3	3	3	3	3
4	4	4	4	4	4	4
5	5	5	5	5	5	5
6	6	6	6	6	6	6

Assume network volumes are "average" in all directions without an inbound/outbound or arterial/cross preference. In this case, you want traffic responsive to vary the cycle length based on the *Cycle Index*, but not vary the offsets or relative splits within the patterns.

You can force traffic responsive to use *Offset Table# 1* by setting all *Offset* thresholds to 100. In this case, Split Index does not matter because the patterns in each column of the table are the same.

No Inbound / Outbound Preference - 3 levels of Arterial vs. Cross Preference

0	ffse	t # 1				
	1	2	3	4	5	6
1	1	1	1	1	1	1
2	2	2	3	3	4	4
3	5	5	6	6	7	7
4	8	8	9	9	10	10
5	11	11	12	12	13	13
6	14	14	15	15	16	16

Assume your arterial volumes are "average" in the inbound and outbound directions. However, in this case, there are significant fluctuations between arterial and cross street demand to warrant varying the splits in the patterns at the same cycle length.

You can force traffic responsive to use *Offset Table# 1* by setting all *Offset* thresholds to 100. However, in this case vary the splits in the patterns assigned to column 1 to favor the arterial and the splits assigned to column 6 to favor the cross street.

Medium Inbound / Outbound Preference – No Arterial vs. Cross Preference

С	offse	et #	2				0	ffse	et #	3			
	1	2	3	4	5	6		1	2	3	4	5	6
1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	7	7	7	7	7	7
3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	8	8	8	8	8	8
4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	9	9	9	9	9	9
5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	10	10	10	10	10	10
6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	11	11	11	11	11	11
С	offse	et #	4										
	1	2	3	4	5	6							
1	1	1	1	1	1	1							
2	12	12	12	12	12	12							
3	13	13	13	13	13	13							
4	14	14	14	14	14	14							
5	15	15	15	15	15	15							
6	16	16	16	16	16	16							

Assume your arterial demand varies significantly in the inbound and outbound directions by timeof-day. In this case you have developed patterns that vary the offsets to favor either an inbound, average or outbound condition.

You can vary the Offset Thresholds to select Offset# 2 for the inbound, Offset# 3 for the average and Offset# 4 for the outbound condition.

Assume that there is no significant difference in arterial vs. cross street demand by time-of-day. In this case, you could implement CIC locally to reassign available slack time based on phases maxing out or gapping out.

5.5 TR Mode Table

The traffic responsive lookup for *Coord Mode* is based on the *Cycle Index* as shown below. In the example, note how SYS (time-of-day coordination) is assigned to the lower levels of *Cycle Index* and how TR (traffic responsive) is assigned to the higher *Cycle Index* values. This allows the system to run time-of-day at the lower cycle lengths, but switch to traffic responsive as V+O increases. This scheme can be especially effective to provide and "incident response" when V+O rises unexpectedly. Please note that with a Central Master the user does not need to program the EXTERNAL column.

🚦 ATMS.now - Version 1.5	.45.	25 - City a	f Sugar L	and / naz	tec										
Navigator 4	1	Contr	oller Da	atabase	Edito	r - Mod	e Table	;							
Home	10 Pil	BB	A												
Actions	١Ö	L H - J -	Lux Cure 1	La Cara A	Lat Care 2	La Car A	La Car E	Lat Care C	Ext Court	E-4 C 2	Eut Cur 2	Ext Con 4	E d Cur E	Eut Cur C	
Database 🔺	<u>a</u>	Mode	Int Lyc I	Int Lyc 2	Int Lyc 3	Int Lyc 4	Int Lyc 5	INCLYC 6	EXELUCI	EXCLUCZ	EXCLUC 3	EXCLUC 4	EXILYCO	EXCLYC 5	
Edit		Mode 1	SYS	SYS	TR	TR	TR	TR	TR	TR	TR	TR	TR	TR	
View															
Upload Doumland															
Coordination Diagn															
Сору															
Real-Time															
Utilities															
Configuration															
Search															
ID															
<alb< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>															
Name															
<alb< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>															
Flex Group															
<alb< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>															
Group															
<alb< th=""><th></th><th>Table 1</th><th>J</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb<>		Table 1	J												
Master ID			-												
<al></al>		\ Actions	X Backup	o 🗶 Comm	and Table	X Crossir	ng Cycle O	ffset X Cj	/cle 🕺 Day	Plan X D	ay Plan Link	: X Enabl	e Alarms 🐰	Enable Eve	nts 🕺 Fail C
Туре		Master	Command	Master	r Test Conf	ig X Matri	ix λ Mode	Table	Offset X P	arameters	(Schedule	er X Split)	Subsyster	m X System	Dets /

5.6 The Traffic Responsive Master Command Table

This traffic responsive table associates the *CMD*# with the *Cycle Index*, so that detector failure thresholds and substitution values can be varied as patterns change from the table lookup. The *Failure Threshold* and *Substitution Value* range from 1-3. This value can be varied by CMD# using the *Master Command Table*.

Navigator 4	.45.	Contro	n Sugar L Aller Di	ang/nazo	Editor	- Master Command
Home	ield C	RA	I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	atabase	Laitor	
Actions	hoose	CMD	Sub Det	Accum Off	Lock	
Edit		CMD 1	2	OFF	OFF	1 -
View		CMD 2	1	OFF	OFF	
Upload		CMD 3	1	OFF	OFF	
Compare		CMD 4	1	OFF	OFF	
Coordination Diagn		CMD 5	1	OFF	OFF	
Copy Beal-Time			1	OFF	OFF	
Utilities			1	055		
Configuration			-	OFF	OFF	-
Search		LMD 8		UFF	UFF	
ID	1	CMD 9	1	OFF	OFF	
<alb< th=""><th>1</th><th>CMD 10</th><th>1</th><th>OFF</th><th>OFF</th><th></th></alb<>	1	CMD 10	1	OFF	OFF	
Name		CMD 11	1	OFF	OFF	
<alb< th=""><th></th><th>CMD 12</th><th>1</th><th>OFF</th><th>OFF</th><th></th></alb<>		CMD 12	1	OFF	OFF	
Flex Group		CMD 13	1	OFF	OFF	
<alb< th=""><th></th><th>CMD 14</th><th>1</th><th>OFF</th><th>OFF</th><th>_</th></alb<>		CMD 14	1	OFF	OFF	_
Group		Table 1		•	•	
			J			
Master ID		Actions	V Backu	y Comma	nd Table	/ Crossing Cucle Offset / Cucle / Dau Plan / Dau Plan Link / Enable Alarms / Enable Events / Fail (
		Master	Command	N Master	Test Config	X Matrix X Mode Table X Offset X Parameters X Scheduler X Split X Subsystem X System Dets /
				hè		

6 Central Master Status

ATMS.now provides a status screen summarizing traffic responsive operation for every *Central Master* active in the system. This status screen is accessed from the Home Module by highlighting the specific Central Master that you are interested in. Select under actions: Real-Time/Master.

ATMS.now - Version 1.5.	.45.2	:5 - City of	Sugar Lan	d / naztec						_ 8
Navigator 🛛 🕂	<u>.</u>	Contro	ller List							75 Found
Home	D Pie		50							
Actions	100	Alarm St	atus ID	Nama	IP Address	Drop	Eley Group	Group	Pattern	Tur
Database	<u>a</u>		atus 10	Fididae and Caseman	102.100.101.200	2	Flex aloup	Claticity Currie	Fattern	
Real-Time			530	Eldridge and Greenway	192.168.101.200	2		Eldridge Syste		NTCIP 61.XTS
Scan		0	531	Eldridge and W. Airport	192.168.101.200	2	Lity Wide	Eldridge Syste		NTCIP 61.x TS
Instant Pattern		0) 532	Eldridge and Florence	192.168.101.200	2	City Wide	Eldridge Syste		NTCIP 61.x TS
Phase Call			600	US 59 and Sugar Creek-Dairy Ashford	192.168.101.200	3				NTCIP 61.x TS
Instant Special Eurotio		0) 601	US 59 and US 90A	192.168.101.200	3				NTCIP 61.x TS
Download Real-time		0) 801	US 59 and New Territory	192.168.101.200	4		Sweetwater Blv		NTCIP 61.x TS
School Zone Manual Fl		0	802	US 59 and University NB	192.168.101.200	4		Sweetwater Blv		NTCIP 61.x TS
Conflict/MMU Report		0	803	University and Lexington	192.168.101.200	4		Sweetwater Blv		NTCIP 61.x TS
Conflict/MMU Trace		Ō	999	Sugarland STD8 Default Template	192.168.101.200	1				NTCIP 61.x TS
Conflict/MMU Program		Ō	1000	ATMS Central Master		1				TR Master 61.
Opticom(tm) Time Upd		·		[Database 🕨 🕨					
Coord Failure per Pha					Real-Time 🕨 M	Master				
Close Alarma				l	Jtilities 🕨 📘	-75	_			
Time Space					Configuration 🕨					
Master										
Clear Comm Status										
Utilities										
Configuration										
Search										
ID										
ZAIN										
1 SBIZ										
Name			-							
I <aid< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></aid<>										
Reset All Fin		List Map								
🗖 Auto Refresh 🛛 🛛 30 se	Rec	ent Alarms								 д

A general status screen will be displayed as explained below.

6.1 General Status

The *General Status* tab provides access to the current state of the traffic responsive system for the selected *Master ID*.

In the example below, Master 1000 has selected pattern # 8 under traffic responsive (TR). Pattern # 8 is currently downloaded to the master closed-loop (MCLP) system. The mode labeled CLP is always the SYS pattern downloaded to the local controllers.

The *Offset Parameter* is 52, which has selected *Offset Index* 3 based on the current threshold values. *Max V+O* (*Cycle Parameter*) has selected *Cycle Index* 1 and *Split Parameter* has selected Split Index 1.

Please note that on the screen below under the Configuration section that the column labeled "*Offset*" shows the generated External IO offset number, which is not used by the central master. It is not related to the Offset values generated under the general section.

General St	atus – Master Co	nfiguration								
General			Com	outodValı	102	_	Poll Time	\$		
			Com	Param	Index		Current	N	POLLS	
					1		Detector	VO 23	8	
Active	Yes		Max V+U	32	_ ' _		Pattern	87	2	
ID	1000		Offset	52	3		I decem		-	
Туре	Traffic Respons	ive :	Split	49	1		Re-Estab Comm	lish 23	5	
Configura	lion					-	Sub Syste	m		
Configura	ation Coordin	ation Mode	Patt	em	Offset		Pos	ID	Status	~
NTRC	TDI		0		1		1	1002	ONLINE	
MIDC	Thi		0		1		2	1003	ONLINE	
MSYS	TRI		0		1		3	0	UNDEF	
MCLP	CLP		8		2		4	0	UNDEF	
MTRI	TR		* 8		3		5	0	UNDEF	
							6	0	UNDEF	
MTRE	TR		0		3		7	0	UNDEF	
FAIL	SBY		0		1		8	0	UNDEF	
MIST	SBY		0		1		9	0	UNDEF	
			Ŭ		·		10	0	UNDEF	
Detecto	r e						11	0	UNDEF	
#	Status	Raw Vo	Raw Oc. 9	Smooth V	Smooth Oc		12	0	UNDEF	
1	ONLINE	34	136 9		50_0001	^	13	0	UNDEF	
2	ONLINE	35	150 1	, IO	76	_	14	0	UNDEF	
3	ONLINE	32	141 9	1	71		15	0	UNDEF	
4	ONLINE	45	129 1	2	65		16	0	UNDEF	
5	ONLINE	42	146 1	2	74		17	0	UNDEF	
6	ONLINE	43	142 1	2	72		18	0	UNDEF	
0	ONLINE	45	142 1	2	12	~	19	0	UNDEF	~

When doing a Real-Time scan of the controllers you will see that pattern # 8 has been chosen.



ATMS Traffic Responsive Central Master

6.2 Sub-System

The Sub-system section provides access to the current status of the 32 local controllers addressable by the master. In the status screen above, Master only has two Station ID's assigned to it, local controllers 1002 and 1003.

6.3 Detectors

The system *Detectors* area on the status screen above provides the current

of the 48 system detectors assigned to the Central Master. In addition the raw volume and occupancy is displayed for each detector. The smooth volume and occupancy includes any substitution values applied to a failed detector outside of the specified threshold values (see section 4.1.5 and 4.1.6).

If you test system detectors with thresholds and allow the detectors to fail, this menu will display the following STATUS each time the failed detector is polled:

- First successive failure (VOL or OCC threshold) RETRY_1 • Second successive failure (VOL or OCC threshold) -**RETRY 2** . Third successive failure (VOL or OCC threshold) – **RETRY 3** • Fourth successive failure (VOL or OCC threshold) – •
- Fifth successive failure (VOL or OCC threshold) -•

Note: If you want a system detector to recover once it reaches the UNDEF state, you must set a substitution value other than zero.

Detector	\$					
#	Status	Raw_Vo	Raw_Oc	Smooth_V	Smooth_Oc	-
1	ONLINE	34	136	9	69	à
2	ONLINE	35	150	10	76	
3	ONLINE	32	141	9	71	
4	ONLINE	45	129	12	65	
5	ONLINE	42	146	12	74	
6	ONLINE	43	142	12	72	~



RETRY_LM UNDEF

6.4 TR History Report

An ATMS.now historical report is available using the Report Module, that reviews the computed coord modes, patterns, and offsets. In addition the cycle, offset and split parameters/indexes as well as the raw volume and occupancy counts will be printed for each analysis period after the user chooses the reported time frame.

TR Master Pattern Change Report												
	ID											
	NAME										Converter of	
										5/7	/2010	
ay 7,	, 2010 6	:25 am									_	
Computed Values Configuration												
		Param	Index		Coord Mode Patte			ern	Offset			
					мтвс		TRI	(0	1		
Max	V+0	26	2		MSYS		TRI	(0	1		
Offse	et	50	4		MCLP		CLP	1	1	2		
Split		0	0		MTRI		TR	1	1	5		
					MTRE		TR	(0	5		
					FAIL		SBY	(0	1		
					мтят		SBY		0	1		
Dete	ectors Raw_V	Raw_0		Raw_V	MTST Raw_0		SBY Raw_V	Raw_O	0	1 Raw_V	Raw_0	
Dete	ectors Raw_V 9	Raw_O	13	Raw_V 0	MTST Raw_O 0	25	SBY Raw_V 0	Raw_0 0	37	1 Raw_V 0	Raw_O 0	
Dete 1 2	ectors Raw_V 9 23	Raw_0 1 5	13 14	Raw_V 0 0	MTST Raw_O 0 0	25 26	SBY Raw_V 0 0	Raw_0 0 0	0 37 38	1 Raw_V 0 0	Raw_0 0 0	
Dete 1 2 3	Raw_V 9 23 4	Raw_0 1 5 0	13 14 15	Raw_V 0 0	MTST Raw_0 0 0 0	25 26 27	SBY Raw_V 0 0 0 0	Raw_0 0 0	0 37 38 39	1 Raw_V 0 0 0	Raw_0 0 0 0	
Dete 1 2 3 4	ectors <u>Raw_V</u> 9 23 4 35	Raw_0 1 5 0	13 14 15 16	Raw_V 0 0 0	MTST Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0	25 26 27 28	SBY Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0	0 37 38 39 40	1 Raw_V 0 0 0 0	Raw_0 0 0 0 0	
Dete 1 2 3 4 5	ectors <u>Raw_V</u> 9 23 4 35 35	Raw_0 1 5 0 0	13 14 15 16 17	Raw_V 0 0 0 0	MTST Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	25 26 27 28 29	SBV Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_0 0 0 0 0 0	0 37 38 39 40 41	1 Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0	
Dete 1 2 3 4 5 6	ectors Raw_V 9 23 4 35 35 26	Raw_0 1 5 0 0 0 0	13 14 15 16 17 18	Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0	MTST Raw_0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	25 26 27 28 29 30	SBY Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 37 38 39 40 41 42	1 Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
Dete 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	ectors <u>Raw_V</u> 9 23 4 35 35 26 15	Raw_0 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0	13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	MTST Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	25 26 27 28 29 30 31	SBV Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 37 38 39 40 41 42 43	1 Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
Dete 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	ectors Raw_V 9 23 4 35 35 26 15 10	Raw_O 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	MTST Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32	SBY Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44	1 Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
Dete 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	ectors <u>Raw_V</u> 9 23 4 35 35 26 15 10 9	Raw_0 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	MTST Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33	SBV Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45	1 Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
Dete 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	ectors <u>Raw_V</u> 9 23 4 35 35 26 15 10 9 0	Raw_O 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	MTST Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34	SBV Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46	1 Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
Dete 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	ectors <u>Raw_V</u> 9 23 4 35 35 26 15 10 9 0 0 0	Raw_O 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	MTST Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35	SBY Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47	1 Raw_V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Raw_O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	

7 CIC (Critical Intersection Control)

The *Advanced Coordination* topics extend the *Basic Coordination* NTCIP methods discussed in Chapter 6 of the NTCIP Controller Manual. These advanced methods are purely optional and add more complexity to the programming required to define a coordination pattern. The *Basic Coordination* methods described in Chapter 6 are adequate for most situations and combine ease of use with extensive diagnostics to insure reliable operation. However, in some instances, *Advanced Coordination* methods may be desirable to provide:

- > greater control over the management of "slack time" in the controller
- > greater control over the permissive windows of opportunity for the non-coordinated phases
- ➤ the ability to force-off the same phase twice per cycle

CIC (*Critical Intersection Control*) is available **only on TS2 controllers using version 61.x firmware** and is easy to program and allows "slack time" to be managed by a dynamic split adjustment performed each cycle. The OTHER modes of *Advanced Coordination* discussed in chapter 6 of the NTCIP Controller manual require the user to manually program force-offs, permissive yield and apply points. The *Basic Coordination* methods defined in chapter 6 of the NTCIP Controller manual automatically calculate these *Easy Calcs* for you when the split times and sequence are specified for the pattern.

CIC (*Critical Intersection Control*) is an optional *adaptive split* feature used with NTCIP FIXED force-offs. This feature is enabled by programming one of four *CIC Plans* under menu MM->2->3 and associating the *CIC Plan* with a pattern in MM->2->6 as shown below.

CIC#	Coorø	Grow	Ø.1.	.2.	.3.	.4.	.5.	.6.	.7.	.8
1	OFF	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
2	P26	1	0	6	3	з	0	6	3	3
3	P48	2	3	6	3	з	3	6	3	3
4	P2468	1	3	6	3	б	3	6	3	6

MM->2->3: CIC Plans (Numbered #1 - #4)

<-	Pat#	<u>01p.0ff</u> :12345678	CIC	CNA1	<u>Max2</u>	<u>Dia</u>
	1		0	•	•	DFT
	2		2	•	•	DFT
	3		3	•	•	DFT
	48		4	•	•	DFT

MM->2->6 (right menu): An Optional CIC# is Associated With Each Pattern #

CIC modifies split times by adjusting force-offs once per cycle in coordination using a method similar to the *Dynamic Max* in free operation. The *CIC* algorithm reduces *Split Times* for phases that gap-out after two consecutive cycles and distributes this time to the *Coord* $\emptyset(s)$ or other "Grow" phases listed in the *CIC* table. CIC insures that "Slack time" from the non-coordinated phases moves to the end of the coord phase rather than the next phase in the sequence. CIC improves progression by moving "slack time" to the end of the Coord- \emptyset instead of at the beginning of the Coord- \emptyset .

7.1 Example Using CIC (Critical Intersection Control)

This section provides a step-by-step example setup of CIC in operation and explains how to interpret the *CIC Calcs* status display and observe the dynamic split adjustments cycle by cycle.

Step 1 – Initialize the controller and modify the STD8 defaults

- a) Turn the *Run Timer* OFF (MM->1->7) and initialize the controller as STD-8Ø under MM->8->4->1. Don't forget to turn the *Run Timer* back ON (MM->1->7)
- b) Change the *Min Green* times phases 1 8 to 2" under MM->1->1->1. Also, change the *Yellow* time of each phase to 2" and the *All-Red* clearance times to 0". These changes will allow you to observe CIC operation quickly using a 40" cycle.
- c) Set STOP-IN-WALK to ON under MM->1->2->1 (right menu). This setting allows *Split Times* to run shorter than the pedestrian minimums set for the through phase defaults.

Step 2 – Create the timing patterns

a) Create three timing patterns in the Pattern Table (MM->2->4) as shown below.

Pat#	Cycle	Offset	Split	Seqnc
1	40	0	1	1
2	40	0	2	1
3	40	0	3	1

MM->2->4: Timing Patterns Used for CIC Examples

b) Create the three *Split Tables* shown below. Pattern 1 is an example of coordination provided along one street phased on 2 and 6 (notice the Coord-Ø setting and the MAX recall applied to 4 and 8). Pattern 2 provides coordination to phases 4 and 8. Pattern 3 provides coordination to both intersecting streets (2, 4, 6 and 8).

Spl-1	Ø1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	->
Time	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	
Coor-Ø		X				•	•		
Mode	NON	MAX	NON	NON	NON	MAX	NON	NON	
Patter	n 1 / Spli	t Table 1	l: Maj	or arter	ial is sit	uated or	n phases	s 2 and	6
Sp1-2	Ø1.	2.	3.	4.	5.	б.	7.	8 ·	->
Time	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	
Coor-Ø		•	•	Х	•	•	•	•	
Mode	NON	NON	NON	MAX	NON	NON	NON I	MAX	_
D a44au		4 Tabla <u>/</u>). <i>\1</i> _:	~~ ~~ * ~~				- 4 J	0
Sp1-3	Ø1	2 ^L	3	4	5	6	7	8	->
Time	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	
Coor-Ø						Х			
Mode	NON	MAX	NON	MAX	NON	MAX	NON	MAX	

Pattern 3 / Split

Table 3: Two major arterials crossing on phases 2, 4, 6 and 8

Step 3 – Assign "slack time" from the actuated phases

In these examples, a single Coord- \emptyset is used in the split table to reference the pattern offset to the beginning of the Coord- \emptyset green. This is the standard default; however, the offset reference may be changed to *EndGrn* under MM->2->5 (right menu). In these examples, the offset (zero point in the cycle, or Loc = 0) is synched to the beginning of the Coord- \emptyset specified in the *Split Table*.

The Coord-Ø is typically "fixed" this is the portion of the cycle that needs to be guaranteed for the progression (green bands) along the major street. *Return Hold* may be set under MM->2->5 (right menu) to insure that when the controller returns to the Coord-Ø that it holds the phase until it is forced off. However, it is more convenient to simply place a MAX recall on the progression phases in the split table. Therefore, in these examples, the MAX mode setting indicates which phases are coordinated and the Coord-Ø is simply used to reference the offset to the beginning of one of these coordinated phases.

Non-coordinated phases are typically fully actuated, sot the Mode setting in the Split Table is typically set to NON (None) or MIN (Min recall). NTCIP coordination specifies that any unused (or "slack time") from the non-coordinated phases is either passed to the next phase in the sequence (FIXED force-offs) or to the Coord- \emptyset (FLOAT-ing force-offs). These concepts were discussed in section 6.3.2. Please review this section before continuing with this example because CIC operation builds upon these two methods.

CIC calls for FIXED force-offs, so "slack time" is always passed to the next available phase in the sequence. However, CIC constantly monitors whether phases gap-out or max-out each cycle and dynamically adjusts the fixed force-offs each cycle to move "slack time" to phases that continue to max-out each cycle and the Coord- \emptyset

FLOAT-ing force-offs move all "slack time" from the actuated phases to the Coord-Ø. However, CIC is often preferred over FLOAT-ing force offs because "slack time" is move to the end rather than the beginning of the progression band. This reduces the early return problem common with FLOAT-ing force-off methods because "slack time" at the beginning of the progression band varies the start of the platoon.

There are essentially 4 ways to manage "slack time" in a semi-actuated controller during coordination:

1) FIXED Force-offs Without CIC – Force-offs are fixed and "slack time" is provided to the next phase.

2) **FIXED Force-offs With CIC** – Force-offs are adjusted dynamically to allocate "slack time" to phases that continue to max-out each cycle. Any remaining "slack time" allocated to the end of the Coord- \emptyset .

3) **FLOAT-ing Force-offs Without CIC** – A separate max timer insures that the non-actuated phases never time more than their programmed split. This moves "slack time" to the beginning of the Coord- \emptyset .

4) **OTHER Force-off Methods** – The OTHER methods are discussed in the last section of this chapter. **Step 4 – Associate a CIC Plan with each pattern**

Any of the four *CIC Plans* may be assigned to the 48 patterns from *Alt Tables*+ (MM->2->6, right menu). For these examples, associate *CIC Plan* 1 with pattern 1, *CIC Plan* 2 with pattern 2 and *CIC Plan* 3 with pattern 3 as shown below:

<-	Pat#	<u>0lp.0ff</u> :12345678	CIC	CNA1	Max2	<u>Dia</u>
	1		1		•	DFT
	2		2		•	DFT
	3		3	•	•	DFT

MM->2->6: Coordination Alt Tables+

Step 5 – Program CIC Plans 1-3 called by Patterns 1-3

CIC#	Coorø	Grow	Ø.1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
1	P26	2	0	20	10	10	0	20	10	10	
2	P48	2	10	10	10	30	10	10	10	30	
3	P2468	1	10	20	10	20	10	20	10	20	
4	OFF	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

Program the first three CIC Plans associated with patterns 1-3 under MM->2->3 as shown below.



Note that the Coord-Ø specified in the *CIC Plan* table corresponds with the MAX mode settings set in the split tables. The MAX settings insure that split times for the coordinated (or progression) phases are guaranteed.

The "Grow" setting may range between 0 and 2 seconds (0 effectively defeats CIC). This parameter controls how much each split time is allowed to "grow" or "shrink" each cycle. The time specified under each phase is called the *Dynamic Max* because it controls the maximum adjustment (positive or negative) allowed for each phase. In the example above, the *Dynamic Max* for the coord phases in each ring is typically set to the sum of the *Dynamic Max* times for the non-coordinated phases. This allows all "slack time" from the non-coordinated phases to move to the end of the coord phases under CIC.

It is important to note that the *Dynamic Max* adjustment cannot reduce split times shorter than the minimum phase times. Note that split times in our example patterns are 10" while the *Dynamic Max* times are set 10-30". CIC insures that split times are not reduced short enough to fail the pattern. Therefore, the *Dynamic Max* settings do not need to be checked by the coordination diagnostics. This simplifies the use of CIC and allows the same CIC Plan to be used for any number of patterns each with varying split times and cycle length.

Step 6 – Test Pattern 1

Force the controller to *Test Pattern 1* by setting *Test, OpMode* to "1" under MM->2->1. Observe the *CIC Calcs* screen under MM->2->8->3. When CIC begins, the *CIC Calcs* screen appears as follows:

Dyn Coor	Ø.1.	2.	3.	4.	5.	6.	7.	8
Dyn Acc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dyn Abs	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dyn Max	0	20	10	10	0	20	10	10
DynTerm	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
PRIM FO	37	7	17	27	37	7	17	27
VEH YLD	7	17	7	7	7	17	7	7

MM->2->8->3: CIC Calcs When Pattern 1 Begins

When CIC begins, the primary force-off and vehicle yield points under *CIC Calcs* are identical to the FIXED force-offs under *Easy Calcs*. The zero point of the 40" cycle is at the beginning of the phase 2 (the Coord- \emptyset). Because the *Split Time* for phase 2 is 10" and yellow clearance is 3", phase 2 is forced-off at 10" – 3" = 7" after the offset. The controller yields to all non-coordinated phases when the coordinated phase is forced off.

Initially, the controller rests in phase 2 and 6 because MAX recalls are set for these phases in *Split Table*

1 and there are no recalls present on the other phases. After 2 cycles, the *CIC Calcs* are recalculated and the "Grow" time of 2" is deducted from phases 3, 4, 7 and 8 and applied to phases 2 and 6 as shown below.

Dyn Coor	Ø.1.	2	3	4.	5.	6	7	8
Dyn Acc	0	4	254	254	0	4	254	254
Dyn Abs	0	4	2	0	0	4	2	0
Dyn Max	0	20	10	10	0	20	10	10
DynTerm	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
PRIM FO	37	11	19	27	37	11	19	27
VEH YLD	7	17	7	7	7	17	7	7

MM->2->8->3: CIC Calcs Two Cycles After Pattern 1 Begins

The *Dynamic Accumulator (Dyn Acc)* tracks the "grow" and "shrink" accumulations each cycle. Positive "slack time" is added to zero which serves as a base reference for positive accumulations. Negative "slack time" is subtracted from 256 as the base reference for negative accumulations. Therefore, a *Dyn Acc* equal to 254 is equivalent to a *Dyn Acc* value of -2 seconds.

After two cycles with MAX recalls on phases 2 and 6 and all other phases skipped, phases 3, 4, 7 and 8 "shrink" by 2" and phases 2 and 6 "grow" by 4". Notice how the 4" accumulation added to phases 2 and 6 extend the force-offs of phase 2 and 6 from Loc=7 to Loc=11 to extend the end of the coordinated movement.

After the third cycle (at Loc=0), another dynamic adjustment is made as shown below. Cross street phases 3, 4, 7 and 8 have "shrunk" a total of 4" each and the coordinated phases have grown by 8". The split times for phases 1 and 5 have not changed because the *Dynamic Max* values for these phases in the *CIC Plan* table are zero. You can easily control which *Split Times* are allowed to "grow" and "shrink" through the *CIC Plan* table

Note that at the end of cycle 3, the force-offs for phases 1 and 5 are still applied at 37; however, the force-off for phases 2 and 6 are at Loc=15 compared with cycle 1 (at Loc=7). These dynamic adjustments begin the coordinated phases at the same point in the cycle (at the end of phase 1 and 5), but extend the end of the coord phases using the "slack time" from the cross street phases.

Dyn Coor	Ø.1.	2	3	4.	5.	6	7.	8	
Dyn Acc	0	8	252	252	0	8	252	252	
Dyn Abs	0	8	4	0	0	8	4	0	
Dyn Max	0	20	10	10	0	20	10	10	
DynTerm	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
PRIM FO	37	15	21	27	37	15	21	27	
VEH YLD	7	17	7	7	7	17	7	7	

MM->2->8->3: CIC Calcs Three Cycles After Pattern 1 Begins

If you continue to observe this display, you will notice that no further split adjustments are made even though the controller continues to rest in 2 and 6 which all other phases are skipped. CIC cannot reduce split times shorter than the phase minimums plus a one second buffer. The sum of the minimum vehicle times is given by:

Minimum Vehicle Time = Min Green + Yellow + All-Red + 1" Buffer = 2" + 3" + 0" + 1" = 6"

A 10" split cannot "shrink" more than 4" without violating this *Minimum Phase Time* even though the *Dynamic Max* values in the *CIC Plan* table are 10". CIC guarantees the *Minimum Phase Times* are not violated, so the user need not be concerned about coord failures resulting from values in the *CIC Plan* table. Also, recall that STOP-IN-WALK was set ON in Step 1 c). If you turn STOP-IN-WALK OFF, all three patterns will fail the coord diagnostic to insure that the pedestrian min times are guaranteed:

Minimum Pedestrian Time = Walk + Ped Clear + Yellow + All-Red + 1" Buffer = 5" + 10" + 3 + 0" + 1" = 19"

Step 7 – Apply recalls to the non-coordinated phases in Pattern 1

Test Pattern 1 is currently resting in phase 2 and 6 with no calls on any of the non-coordinated phases. CIC has moved as much "slack time" as possible from phases 3, 4, 7 and 8 to the end of phases 2 and 6. In this step, we will observe how the "slack time" is transfers back to the non-coordinated phases as they are called into service.

Place MIN recalls on every phase but 2 and 6 using the Mode setting in *Split Table 1* as shown below. Confirm that these recalls are present from menu MM->7->1 and then watch the *CIC Calcs* from MM->2->8->3.

Spl-1	Ø1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	->
Time	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	
Coor-Ø		x							
Mode	MIN	MAX	MIN	MIN	MIN	MAX	MIN	MIN	

MM->2->7->1: Split Table 1 With MIN Recalls Applied to the Non-coordinated Phases

Note that after 4 or 5 cycles, the *CIC Calcs* have not changed from our last example even though all the non-coordinated phases are being recalled instead of being skipped. CIC cannot reduce the split times below the *Minimum Phase Times* as discussed in Step 6. Therefore, no split adjustments are made when the actuated service their min times.

Now go to *Split Table 1* and place a MAX recall on phase 4. Go back to the *CIC Calc* screen and observe how the Dynamic Max changes as phase 4 begins to "grow" back to it's original split time. These changes are summarized in the table below for 5 consecutive cycles.

Cycle #	Phase Recall Mode	CIC Dynamic Accumulator								
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
1	4 MIN	0	8	252	252	0	8	252	252	
3	4 MAX	0	6	252	254	0	6	252	254	
4	4 MAX	0	4	252	0	0	4	252	0	
5+	4 MAX	0	4	252	0	0	4	252	0	

Example of Non-coordinated Phase 4 Regaining "Slack Time" and Growing Back to the Original Split

After 2 cycles with MAX recall applied to phase 4, the accumulated "slack time" provided to the end of the coordinated phases (phase 2 and 6) has been reduced and moved back to service phase 4. This dynamic split adjustment allows the *Split Times* to "grow" and "shrink" within the constraints of the *CIC Plan* table. This operation is similar to the *Dynamic Max* feature that allows max times to grow in a

step-wise manner in free operation (see section 4.1.3).

Now, place a MAX recall on phase 3 in Split Table 1. You will observe the following dynamic split adjustment:

Cycle #	Phase Recall Mode	CIC Dynamic Accumulator									
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8		
1	3 MIN and 4 MAX	0	4	252	0	0	4	252	0		
3	3 & 4 MAX	0	2	254	0	0	2	254	0		
4+	3 & 4 MAX	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		

Example of Non-coordinated Phase 3 Regaining "Slack Time" Back to the Original Split

Step 8 – How CIC improves split utilization on the cross street

CIC can also make dynamic split adjustments to the non-coordinated phases to improve split utilization on the cross street. For example, assume the cross street left-turn movements are protected-only and that phases 3 and 8 max-out each cycle while phases 4 and 7 are running their *Minimum Phase Times*. We can simulate this condition by programming the *Mode* settings in *Split Table 1* as follows:

Spl-1	Ø1	2	3.	4	5	6	7 .	8	->
Time	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	
Coor-Ø		x							
Mode	MIN	MAX	MAX	MIN	MIN	MAX	MIN	MAX	

Cross Street Phases 3 ad 8 are Max-out While Phases 4 and 7 Are Timing Their Mins

Observe the CIC Calcs until the dynamic splits adjustments come to rest as shown below.

Dyn Coor	Ø.1.	2.	3	4.	5.	6	7.	8	
Dyn Acc	0	0	4	252	0	0	252	4	
Dyn Abs	0	0	4	0	0	0	252	0	
Dyn Max	0	20	10	10	0	20	10	10	
DynTerm	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
PRIM FO	37	7	21	27	37	7	13	27	
VEH YLD	7	17	7	7	7	17	7	7	

CIC Improves Cross Street Split Utilization By Moving "Slack Time" Where It Is Needed

In this example, phases 1, 5, 2 and 6 continue to time their programmed *Split Times* (there is no dynamic split adjustment applied to the major street). However, phase 3 has gained an additional 4" from phase 4 and phase 8 has gained 4" from phase 7.

If FIXED force-offs without CIC was used in this example, phase 8 would receive the same unused "slack time" from phase 7 because phase 8 follows phase 7 in the sequence. However, phase 3 would

never be allowed to "grow" by 4" using FIXED force-offs without CIC because phase 3 follows phase 2 in the sequence which is servicing it's MAXimum split. Therefore, CIC can improve split utilization for the first cross street phases serviced after leaving the coordinated street. This capability is especially useful if the cross street left-turns are protected only and max-out each cycle while "slack time" exists on the opposing through movements.

Step 9 – Test Pattern 2

Refer back to the *Split Table* for pattern 2 under Step 2. The Coord-Ø is phase 4 and MAX recalls are set on phases 4 and 8. This configuration would typically be used if the major street through movements are serviced on phases are 4 and 8 and the cross street is 2 and 6.

Now, force the controller into pattern 2 by setting Test, OpMode to "2" under MM->2->1.

Spl-2	Ø1	2	3	4 .	5	6	7	8	->
Time	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	
Coor-Ø	•	•	•	X	•	•	•	•	
Mode	NON	NON	NON	MAX	NON	NON	NON	MAX	

Pattern 2 / Split Table 2: Major arterial is situated on phases 4 and 8

This pattern calls for *CIC Plan* # 2 as programmed under Step 5 and allows all non-coordinated phases to "grow" or "shrink" by 10". The coordinated phases can grow as much as 30" by applying "slack time" to the end of phases 4 and 8. Each phase is constrained by the *Minimum Phase Times* guaranteed for each phase.

CIC#	Coorø	Grow	Ø.1.	2	3	4	5.	6	7	8	
1	P26	2	0	20	10	10	0	20	10	10	
2	P48	2	10	10	10	30	10	10	10	30	
3	P2468	1	10	20	10	20	10	20	10	20	
4	OFF	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

MM->2->3: CIC Plans 1-3 called by Patterns 1-3

Test Pattern 2 rests in 4 and 8 because of the MAX recalls programmed for these phases in the *Split Table*. No other recalls are placed on any other phase in *Split Table* 2, so all the 12" of accumulated "slack time" is moved to the end of phases 4 and 8. This move the force-off points for phases 4 and 8 from Loc=7" to Loc=19".

Dyn Coor	Ø.1.	2	3.	4	5	6	7.	8	
Dyn Acc	252	252	252	12	252	252	252	12	
Dyn Abs	8	4	0	12	8	4	0	12	
Dyn Max	10	10	10	30	10	10	10	30	
DynTerm	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
PRIM FO	25	31	37	19	25	31	37	19	
VEH YLD	7	7	7	17	7	7	7	17	

In CIC Plan 1 we omitted the main street left-turns from the CIC split adjustment. CIC Plan 2 allows

the main street left-turn phases (3 and 7) to "grow" and "shrink" along with the cross street phases (3, 4, 7 and 8). If you place a MAX recall on phase 3 in *Split Table 2*, the *Dynamic Accumulator* changes as follows:



This example illustrates why you typically reduce or omit the main street left-turn phases from CIC. *Dynamic Max Time* for phases 3 and 7 should be constrained in *CIC Plan 2* to move more of the "slack time" to 4 and 8.

Step 10 – Test Plan 3 (Two Coordinated Intersecting Arterials)

This last example, both intersecting streets are coordinated. One of the phases is chosen as the Coord- \emptyset to reference the offset to the beginning of the Coord- \emptyset . MAX calls are placed on all through movements to guarantee cycle time to the progressed movements.

Spl-3	Ø1	2 ^l .	3	4 .	5	6	7	8	->
Time	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	
Coor-Ø		•	•	•	•	Х	•		
Mode	NON	MAX	NON	MAX	NON	MAX	NON	MAX	

Pattern 3 / Split Table 3: Two major arterials crossing on phases 2, 4, 6 and 8

The Coord-Ø in CIC Plan # 3 is set to P2468 and the left-turn phases are set to "grow" or "shrink" a maximum of 10" compared to 20" for the progressed movements.

CIC#	Coorø	Grow	Ø.1.	2	3	4	5	6	7 .	8	
1	P26	2	0	20	10	10	0	20	10	10	
2	P48	2	10	10	10	30	10	10	10	30	
3	P2468	1	10	20	10	20	10	20	10	20	
4	OFF	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

MM->2->3: CIC Plans 1-3 called by Patterns 1-3

Force the controller into *Test Pattern 3* by setting *Test, OpMode* to "3" under MM->2->1. *Split Table 3* called by this pattern issues MAX recalls on phases 2, 4, 6 and 8 while phases 1, 3, 5 and 7 are skipped.

Observe the *CIC Calcs* under MM->2->8->3. Note that the *Dynamic Accumulator* adjustments are only 1" each cycle compared with the 2" adjustment in *Test Plans 1 and 2*. This is due to the difference in the *Grow* settings for these 3 CIC plans in the *CIC Plan* table.

8 Setup Considerations

The following procedure and considerations were developed during training in Santa Cara County. They are referenced to assist the user when setting up Traffic Responsive. This is only a reference document that will assist your agency when setting up Traffic Responsive.

- 1. Create System Master
 - a. Configuration > Create Definition
 - b. Enter Controller ID
 - c. Enter Controller Name
 - d. Select Controller Type to "TR Master 6.1x"
 - e. Select Drop Number (Suggest 1 or 255)



2. From Controller List, Selected Database Edit of newly created System Master

ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45.55	Sar	nta Cla	ra Cour	nty / m	organ2									
Navigator 🥑	22	Con	troller	List									187 Four	d 👳
Home	8	DIR												- dpr
Actions	700			20				_						- a
Database	ŝ	Nam	Status	ID	Name	X-Reference	Coord State	Cycle	Pattern	Split Index	Seq	Offset	Local Counter	^
Real-Time				6610	Duane Master	0	Database	-	Edit					
Utilities				6624	Lochnivar Master	0	Real-Time	•	View	-				
Conngulation			~	6650	Westgate Master	0	Utilities	•	Compare					
Search			0	0641	LWERO	1	Configuration	n 🕨	Copy		1		23	
ID A		9	0	5603	Lw-lasman	2	PHEE	_	204	-	1		15	
cAlb 💌		•	0	5605	LwSanda	3	FHEE		254		1		187	
Name			2	5607	Lw-Hwy 101 NB	4							0	
oldb 🗸		•	0	5608	Lw-Hwy101 SB	5	FHEE		254		1		40	
First Group			2	5010	Lw-Duane	0	LUNG	100	0	0		43	41	
cab.			0	5611	LwArgues	/	LUNG	160	6	6	3	19	/4	
5mp			2	5012	Livial	0	LUNG	100	0	0	6	142	34	
chb 💌			0	5613	LWHEED	9	LUNG	160	6	6	3	10	119	
Master D			2	5610	LiviCabilito	10	CUNG	100	0	0	-	40	6.3	
riab V			2	5613	Lwsenon	10	STNL	160	6	6	2	138	84	
The second secon			8	0024	Lw-Locninvar	12	STAC	100	0	0		120	30	
lipe			2	5625	Lw-fiomestead	13	STNC	160	6	0		113	104	
oup M			2	2027	Lw-Denigh	14	CALC	100	0	0		100	113	
Diop			2	5625	LwPrunidge	10	STNC	160	0	0	3	107	100	
(AID-			2	2030	Lev-Laver-200	10	FREE		224				136	
IP Address			0	5632	Livenny	10	FREE		204				120	
oAlb 💌		•	2	5633	LunDeule	10	EDEE		204				70	
XRelevence			2	5634	LwDoyle	19	FREE		204				78	
cAb 💌		14	•	3630	Civwesigate	120	PHEE		204				20	<u> </u>
Comm Status			dan	_				-						-
Reset AlL Find Now	Ŀ		unb											
🗆 Auto Refresh 30 secs 💌	Rec	cent Alan	ma											C
Home	D		<u>اھا</u>	×										
Definitions		H Channel										_		5
	1.60	o crioos				Name	Drop	Statu	13 H	De	scription		Date/T	
Reports		Check	AI	Clear Al		Take Zone	1.140	1.04	-	PERSON L	et stand		NUMATION DATE	
5	B	anari Ak	une a		Inni Sustan Notae	Defected" Curren	Illeare Incidae	nt Trino	er Selecter	(Datal)				_
distant d & A D	-	4.0			and any linear	W Located	Inter D						6.2.2. 100	0.04

3. Check Filter to "ALL"



4. SUBSYSTEM Tab:

- a. Enter Local Controller ID number for all intersections that will be in Subsystem
- b. Set TYP to "LOC" for all local controllers added to the Subsystem
- c. Set Version to the particular type of controller that you are using for all local controllers added to the Subsystem.



5. PARAMETERS Tab:

- a. Set Station Type to "MST"
- b. Enter Min Change time. Should match the local controller Detector Poll Time
- c. Enter Master ID No, should match the same Controller ID number assigned to the ATMS
- d. Enter Local Sample time to match Min Change time entered above
- e. Set Detector Event Polling to, "ON"
- f. Pattern Interval should be set to a Minimum of "1".

Navigator	<u> </u>	Controll	er Database	Editor - F	aramete	rs					
Home	M C	1 6 6									
Actions	- Iš										
Database	Ť.	Pams npe	e Scan Uvende	Station Type	Min Unange	Local Sample	Master IU	TOD Interval	Pattern Interval	Det E venit Holling	6610-Duane Ma
Real-Time		Pams 1	0	MST	3	3	6610	0	0	UN	
Configuration											
Search .											
10	~										
<ab th="" v<=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></ab>											
Name											
<alb.< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb.<>											
Fies Group											
(Ab 💌											
Group											
(AD)											
Master ID											
(Alb 💌											
Туре		C.								3	
oldo 🔽		Terre C									1
Drop		1 able 1									
oAb 💌											
IP Address		Actions X B	Sackup / Comma	and Table X	Crossing Dycle	Offset Cycl	le Day P	an / Day Pla	n Link / Enable	Alams Enable	Events
oAlb 💌		Fail Config	Master Comma	ind / Master	Test Config	Mattix Mor	de l'able	Ulfreet Para	meters / Sched	suler / Spit / Sul	aystem
XReference		oysiell Dec	•								
(Alb 💌		Databa	e Configuration	Standard .	• F	iter (Ab	*		Apply	DK.	Cancel
Comm Statue	~	By Controller	By Entry			-					
Reset Al Find Now		,									
🗌 Auto Refrech 🛛 30 secs 💌	Be	cent Alams									c
4444444											
Home		2 8 8	×								
Definitions	Fie	d Chooser	e	ID	Name	,	Drop S	tatus II	Des	cription	Date/T
Reports		Check All	Clear All	5902 Mi.	Trade Zone	1	30 0	- 75	FEPROM CR	F Facê El	15/2010 10:08 =
	* F	ecent Alams	Alarm History S	System Notes	Opticom""	Current Users	Incident T	igger Select	ed Details		
discussion of the case			(5 m 5

6. SYSTEM DETECTORS Tab:

- a. For each system detector that will feed the master enter the following info:
 - i. Primary ID The ATMS Local Intersection Controller No
 - ii. Primary Det The Local Intersection System Detector
 - iii. Smooth Smooth factor that identifies how each volume and occupancy data input is average in relation to the previous sample



- iv. Full Rate Vol vehicle/minute rate value for this lane. For a maximum value of 1,200 vehicle/minute this would correspond to 20 vehicle/minute
- v. Full Rate Occ vehicle/minute rate value rate for max saturation flow rate, generally accepted to be between 1,800 to 2,000 vehicles per hour which corresponds to 30 to 33 vehicle/minute
- vi. Fail High Vol Set to 100 to never fail the detector input
- vii. Fail High Occ Set to 200 to never fail the detector input
- viii. Fail Low Vol and Fail Low Occ Set to 0 to never fail the detector input
- ix. Sub Vol and Sub Occ This is the static value that will be used by the Master should the primary detector input fail. Because the Fail High Vol/Low Vol are set to 100 and 0 and Fail High Occ/Low Occ are set to 200 and 0 respectively, this fallback parameter will never be



utilized because the detector is never allowed to fail.

- x. Scalar (Vol or Occ) Desired weight of this detector input value in comparison to other detector inputs on the Subsystem. Suggest setting all Scalar values to 1. You can then do a ratio such as 2:1 if another detector input is twice as important as others on the Subsystem.
- xi. Det Group Set to either IN or OUT or CROSS (CRS) depending on whether the detector is providing Inbound data to the destination area, Outbound from the destination area or is a Cross Street along the corridor

7. MASTER TEST CONFIG Tab:

- a. Set Coord Tab to "TBC" at start to let the subsystem run in normal Time-Based Coordination so that you can monitor what the system would do if running in Traffic Responsive mode. When you are ready to turn Traffic Responsive on, set the Coord Tab to "SBY" to pass control to the Master schedule
- b. Set Pattern to "0"



8. ACTIONS Tab:

- a. Set Action 1 Coord Type to "TRI". This will be the action that enables Traffic Responsive
- b. Set Action 2 Coord Type to "TBC" and Pattern "0". This will be the action that enables Time-Based Coordination
- c. Set Action 54 Coord Type "TBC" and Pattern "254". This will be the action that enables Free Mode
- d. Set Action 55 Coord Type "TBC" and Pattern "255". This will be the action that enables Flash Mode.
- 9. SCHEDULER Tab:

Suggest reserving Day Plan 1 for Mon thru Fri operations, Day Plan 2 for Saturday operations, and Day Plan 3 for Sunday Operations. For each Day Plan enable the Month and Day and appropriate Day of Week. This will allow you flexibility to enable the Master at any Time in the ATMS Schedule at any time and your central master will already be set up to run at the desired time.



R ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45.55	5 - Si	anta Clara	County /	morgani	2										B ATMS.now	Version 1.5.45.55	Santa	a Clara Co	unty/mo	rgan2										
Navigator (5	<u>د</u> ا	Contr	oller Da	tabase	Editor -	Sched	uler							8	Navigator	c	7 0	Controll	er Datab	ase Edi	tor - Scl	heduler								5
Home	a de		@											1	Home		ie i	486												di la
Actions	8	700		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~					07		00	10		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Actions			100 0		20	- 14	6	16	T	Sec. 4	71		C -1	Ph	
Database	2	100	UI VEO	Lune.	US Lune	U4	June	Ue	Ture.	Luco	U0	IVEC.	Type	A 6610-Duane Ma	Database		2	100 8	23	Jure	June	Sun	Mon	Tue	wed	Inu	PR	265	rien A B	610-Duane Ma
Heal-Time		1001	16.5	165	TES	TED	TES	C31	TES	TES	TES	TES	16.5		Heal-Time Utilities		LH	001	TES	Cat	C31		12.5	TES	16.5	16.5	16.5		-	
Configuration		TUD 2	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES		Configuration		LH	UD 2	YES	YES	YES							YES	2	
Search		TOD 3	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES		Search		L P	rob 3	YES	YES	YES	YES							3	
ID A	~	TOD 4													ID	^		TOD 4											1	
cáb 💌		TOD 5													cáb	~	1	TOD 5											1	
Name		TOD 6													Name		1	10D 6											1	
dAb 💌		TOD 7													<4b	~	1	FOD 7											1	
Flex Group		TOD 8													Flex Group			rop a											1	
cAlb 💌		TOD 9													<aid< th=""><td>~</td><td>1 1</td><td>FOD 9</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td></aid<>	~	1 1	FOD 9											1	
Group		TOD 10													Group			TOD 10											1	
cAlb 💌		TOD 11													cAlb	~		TOD 11											1	
Master ID		TOD 12			-										Master ID		15	TOD 12											1	
(AD M		TOD 13		-	-	-	-		-						cAlb	×	LΒ	TOD 13		-	-								1	
Type		T00 14	-	-	-	-									Type		LБ	100.14											1	
OAD M		100.15	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-		OAD	<u> </u>	LВ	100.15	_	-	-			-		-	-		1	
(Ab		100 10	-	-	-	-			-			-	<u> </u>		cáb	~	LВ	100 10	_											
IP Adduese		100 16		-	-	-	-		-	-					IP Address		LН	0016												
(AD 💌		100 17	-	-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	-	-		CAD	~	ĿВ	100 17	_	-	-			-		-	-		1	
XReference		100 18											1	<u>×</u>	XReference			100 18											1 1	
cAID 💌															cAlb	¥	1 1										-			
Comm Status	~	Table 1												1	Comm Status	~		Table 1												1
Reset AL. Find Now										1/			V =		Reset AL.	Find Now														
Auto Refresh 30 secs 💌		Actions	Backup	Comman	nd Table	Crossing L	Jycle Uttoel	Cycle	Day Plan	DayPla	an Link	Enable Alar	ms Enable	e Events	Auto Refresh	30 secs 💌		Actions / I	Backup	Command Ta	ble / Eros	ssing Cycle	Ufford A C	Jycle / Da	ay Plan / D	Jay Plan Li	sk Enab	le Alams X	Enable Eve	enks /
	-0	FailLor	ng Mas	er Commar	Na Maso	er i est Con	ig ∕ Has	IK / Mode	Table / Ut	set / Par	amerers A	scheduler	Spik Si	ubsystem				Fail Long	Master	ommand	Masterres	it Loning _/	Mank	PRODE LIBBRE	Unser	Paramer	ers \ son	equier / sp	K Subsys	Jem /
Home		Shigu	Deta /												Home			System De	•											
Definitions	Database Configuration Standard Filter (Alb Apply DK Cencel Definitions											Databa	se Configura	tion Stand	ard 💌	Fi	ter (Ab	•		(Apply		0K	Cancel						
Reports	Ŀ	By Controlle	By Enity												Reports		By (Controller	By Enity											
, v	Recent Merri Merri History Sectors Notes Deficient" Depend Honey Selected Databa							ŝ	Bece	ellisers ent Alerna I	Alarm Histo	ry System	Notes Or	ticen ^{an} C	ument Liser	n Incider	nt Tripper	Selected I	antaile			10								
# start 6 18 / 10 1				ATMS.now	- Version	W.	- Schedule	r 1 - Paint						C 5 10:16 AM	# start	00/00	2.0	0	B AT	Sinne - Ver	sino	W 9-5d	eduler 2 - I	Paint					é	Shanna an

10. DAY PLAN Tab:

Because the Scheduler was set up to operate three different Day Plans, one for weekdays and one for each weekend day, the first three Day Plans must be programmed to run Traffic Responsive operations.

- a. For each Day Plan set a Start Time of Hour "0" and Min "1"
- b. For each Day Plan set an Action "1" to Run Traffic Responsive

11. MATRIX/CYCLE/OFFSET Tabs:

The Matrix is representation of the Cubic | Trafficware 3-dimensional Table of Patterns. The Table of Patterns represents the Patterns that will be selected by the Master, using Cycle and Offset parameters, and then directed by implementation by the Local Intersection Controllers.

Each Local Intersection Controllers on the Subsystem must be programmed with the same Pattern numbers for Traffic Responsive operations to functional properly.



The Matrix table represents strategies for managing varying traffic patterns. In the examples below, AM traffic is managed through Offset Tables1/2, Midday traffic by Offset Table 3, and PM traffic by Offset Table 4/5. For simplicity only one Pattern reference change option is provided to the system and Offset Tables 1/2 reference to morning and Offset Tables 3/4 both identify the same commute period is to allow the user to identify strategies later to manage mid-morning and mid-afternoon strategies.

	(Offset	Tabl	es 1/2	(AM)	Cy	/cle	Offs	set
	1	2	3	4	5	6	Inc	Dec	Inc	Dec
	254	254	254	254	254	254	-	7	-	10
ļ	7	7	7	7	7	7	10	25	15	36
j j	8	8	8	8	8	8	33	45	38	35
att att	9	9	9	9	9	9	50	60	40	75
	2	2	2	2	2	2	65	80	80	-
	4	4	4	4	4	4	85	-		

	С)ffset	Table	s 3 (N	lidday	/)	C	ycle	Offs	set
	1	2	3	4	5	6	 Inc	Dec	Inc	Dec
	254	254	254	254	254	254	-	7	-	10
	17	17	17	17	17	17	10	25	15	36
۵ ا	18	18	18	18	18	18	33	45	38	35
Ť.	22	22	22	22	22	22	50	60	40	75
	19	19	19	19	19	19	65	80	80	-
	19	19	19	19	19	19	85	-		
		Offset	Tabl	es 4/5	(PM))	C	vcle	Offs	set
		01150	Iuor	00 1/0	(****			/		
	1	2	3	4	5	6	 Inc	Dec	Inc	Dec
	<u>1</u> 254	$\frac{2}{254}$	<u>3</u> 254	$\frac{4}{254}$	<u>5</u> 254	<u>6</u> 254	 Inc	<u>Dec</u> 7	Inc	<u>Dec</u> 10
_ U	$\frac{1}{254}$	$\frac{2}{254}$	$\frac{3}{254}$	$\frac{4}{254}$	5 254 30	<u>6</u> 254 30	 <u>Inc</u> - 10	<u>Dec</u> 7 25	<u>Inc</u> - 15	<u>Dec</u> 10 36
iem ie	1 254 30 31	$\frac{2}{254}$ $\frac{30}{31}$	$\frac{3}{254}$ 30 31	$ \frac{4}{254} 30 31 $	5 254 30 31	6 254 30 31	 <u>Inc</u> - 10 33	<u>Dec</u> 7 25 45	<u>Inc</u> - 15 38	Dec 10 36 35
attern	1 254 30 31 32	$ \frac{2}{254} 30 31 32 $	3 254 30 31 32	$ \frac{4}{254} 30 31 32 $	5 254 30 31 32	6 254 30 31 32	 <u>Inc</u> - 10 33 50	Dec 7 25 45 60	<u>Inc</u> 15 38 40	Dec 10 36 35 75
Pattern	$ \begin{array}{r} 1 \\ 254 \\ 30 \\ 31 \\ 32 \\ 12 \end{array} $	$ \frac{2}{254} 30 31 32 12 $	$ \begin{array}{r} 3 \\ 254 \\ 30 \\ 31 \\ 32 \\ 12 \end{array} $	$ \frac{4}{254} 30 31 32 12 $		6 254 30 31 32 12	 <u>Inc</u> - 10 33 50 65	Dec 7 25 45 60 80	<u>Inc</u> 15 38 40 80	Dec 10 36 35 75

The Offset and Cycle percentage selection per step is an iterative process. As a suggestion, percentages that select the Patterns would Time-Based Coordination is a good starting consider using a Decrease percentage that is 5the previous Increase percentage.



increase/decrease identifying normally run under point. In addition, points lower than

# ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45.55	San	ta Clara	County J	morgan	2											×
Navigator 🥑	Ţ	Contro	ller Da	tabase	Editor	- Matrix										Ga
Home	NO PIC	<u>,</u>	8													dgets
Actions	0000	Officet	Int C1 S1	Int C1 S2	Int C1 S3	Int C1 S4	Int C1 S5	Int C1 S6	Int C2 S1	Int C2 S2	Int C2 S3	Int C2 S4	Int C2 S5	Int C2	6610 Durana Ma	
Database Data Time	-	Offset 1	254	254	254	254	254	254	7	7	7	7	7	7	COTO-D'Garlo Ma	
Utilities		Offset 2	254	254	254	254	254	254	7	7	7	7	7	7		
Configuration		Offset 3	254	254	254	254	254	254	17	17	17	17	17	17		
Search		Offset 4	254	254	254	254	254	254	30	30	30	30	30	30		
ID 🔨		Offset 5	254	254	254	254	254	254	30	30	30	30	30	30		
<alb th="" 💌<=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></alb>																
Name																
(Alb 💌																
Flex Group																
(Alb 💌																
Group																
(Alb 💌																
Master ID																
(Alb 📉																
Type																
(AID																
LAD V																
CAUD M																
Zálb																
V. Reference																
cáb V		<												>		
Comm Status		Table 1														
Beset AL Find Now																
E data Data at		Actions	Backup	X Comma	nd Table)	Crossing	Cycle Offsi	st 🕺 Cycle	: X Day P	lan 🕺 Day	Plan Link	Enable /	Marms X E	inable E	vents /	
Auto Heffesh 30 secs		Fail Coni	ig X Mas	ter Comma	nd X Mas	ter Test Co	nfig \ Ma	mix / Mod	e Table X	Offset X	arameters	Schedu	ler / Split	X Sub	system /	
Home		System I)ets /													
		Data	base Confi	auration [Standard	-	Filter	(AID)	-			ánniu			Cancel	
Definitions		Controller	D. Cate	-		_		1.0.00				~~~~			Caricer	
Reports	L	y Controller] by critis	1	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_			
ŝ	Re	ent Il sere cent Alarm	Alarm	History S	ystem Note	s Opticor	Curre	nt Users	Incident T	rigger Se	lected Deta	als			10	
🏄 start 🛛 🧭 🖸 🖉 💈	1	ø o		ATMS.now	- Version .		10 - Day P	lan - Paint						() 🖏 🖕 10:17 A	и

ATMS.now · Version 1.5.45	5.55 -	Santa Clara	County /	morgani											
lavigator	<u>e</u>	🗿 Contro	oller Dat	tabase	Editor -	Matrix									
Home			6												
Actions													1.01.05		
Database		g Uttset	int L3ST	Int L3 S2	Int L3 S3	Int L3 54	Int L355	Int L3 Sb	Int L4 ST	Int L4 52	Int L4 53	Int L4 54	Int L4 55	Intu	6610-Duane Ma
Real-Time Utilities		Offset 2	8	8	8	8	8	8	3	3	3	3	3	3	
Configuration		Offset 2	8	8	8	8	8	8	9	9	9	9	9	9	
Search		Offset 4	31	31	31	31	31	31	32	32	32	30	32	32	
D	^	Offset 5	31	31	31	31	31	31	32	32	32	32	32	32	
(Ab 🗸						-								1	
lame															
(Alb 🔽															
lex Group															
Alb 🔽															
roup	Ξ														
Alb 🔽															
aster ID															
Alb 💌															
ype															
AID 📉															
Alb.															
P Address															
Ab 🗸															
Reference		1.0		_											
(Alb 🔽														>	
Comm Status	~	Table 1	J												
Reset AlL Find Now															
Auto Refresh 30 secs	~	Actions	Backup	Commar	nd Table X	Crossing	Cycle Offse	t / Cycle	Day Pli	an / Day f	Plan Link)	Enable A	arms X Er	nable E	vents /
		Fail Con	fig / Masl	er Comman	d / Mast	er Test Con	fig Mab	ix / Mode	Table X	Offset / P	arameters	X Schedul	ar / Split /	X Subs	ystem
ome		System	Dets												
efinitions		Data	abase Config	juration S	tandard	-	Filter	<alb< th=""><th>-</th><th></th><th></th><th>Apply</th><th>OK</th><th></th><th>Cancel</th></alb<>	-			Apply	OK		Cancel
eports		By Controller	By Entry												
		Current Lisers					_	_							
	÷	Recent Alarm	is Alarm H	listory Sy	stern Notes	Opticon	Curren	it Users	Incident Tri	gger Sel	ected Dieta	is			
🚪 start 📰 🙆 🙆 🏉 関	2 2	200	8	ATMS.now		. W) 🏷 🦕 10:19



12. FAIL CONFIG Tab:

There should be no modifications necessary to this tab unless more rigid failure requirements are desired by the user.

a. TX Error Time, in seconds, represents the amount of time that the system will expect a reply before failing the Master.

ATMS.now - Version 1.5.	45.55 - Sa	nta Clara County / morgan2	
svigator	<u> </u>	Controller Database Editor - Fail Config	
lome	100 A	0. 8 Ø	
Actions	100		
atabase	2	Fail Tx Error Time Unline Event Enable Comm Errors Coold Comm Errors Critic # Station Fail Coold	54 6610-Duane
leal-Time NZDian		Faul U UFF SBT U U SBT	10
Configuration			
Search			
)	~		
:Alb	~		
ame	-		
Alb	~		
ex Group			
Ab i	~		
oup			
Ab l	~		
aster ID	_		
n I	~		
,pe	_		
AD 1	×		
op			
Ab	×		
Address			
Ab	×		
Reference			>
AID I	×	Table 1	
omm Status	_1		
Heset Alt Find No	M	Actions / Backup / Command Table / Crossing Ducle Offset / Cucle / Day Plan / Day Plan Link / Enable Alarms / En	able Events
Auto Refresh 30 secs	~	Fail Config / Master Command / Master Test Config / Matrix / Mode Table / Offset / Parameters / Scheduler / Solit /	Subsystem /
		System Dets /	
me			
finitions		Database Configuration Standard Filter (Ab Apply OK	Cancel
ports	_	By Controller By Entry	
		neetHoarc	
	÷ ,	ecent Alame Alam History System Notes Opticom ⁷⁷ Current Users Incident Trigger Selected Details	
Lotart (1) 59 (B 1 B S	A A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL PROPERTY AND A	(C

- 13. Scheduling of the Master to Operate in ATMS.now:
 - Note: It is recommended that the user create a Flex Group within ATMS.now for the intersections that will be included in the Subsystem and that the Flex Group be scheduled to Poll for Status by the ATMS if the local intersection controllers are not already communicating to the central system.
 - a. Select the Definitions Tab located at the bottom left side of the ATMS.now home screen.
 - b. Select the "Scheduler > Create Schedule" link.
 - c. Assign a "Description" to the TR Master that will make is easy to reference.
 - d. Select "ATMS.now Master" Type
 - e. Select "by" "Controller" since the Traffic Responsive Master is consider a local controller on the ATMS.now. DO NOT SELECT "MASTER" Type.
 - f. Leave Start/Stop and Time/Date ranges alone
 - g. Select the Days of the Week that the Traffic Responsive Master will operate.
 - h. Set "Interval" to "Continuous"

# ATMS.now - Version 1.5.45.55	- Santa Clara County / mo	organ2			
Navigator 🕑	Duane Traffic Resp	oonsive Mast	er		8
Definitions					after after
Actions		Schedule Deta	a.		
Alarm Notification		Ocheodic Deal	-		
Backup and Archive		Description	Duane Traffic Responsive Master		
Controllers Umine		Type	ATMS now Master	~	
Congestion		R.	Contrador III		
Device		0y			
Device and Event Locations Event		Select	Duane Master	~	
Flex Group					
GIS			Shart	Sinn	
Group			Dian.	unup	
Incident Lingger		Time Range	00 • 00 •	23 💌 59 💌	
Message		Date Bange	6/14/2010 -	17 1/2050	
Monitor					
Scan Builder		Days	Select All		
List Schedules			🔽 Sun 🔽 Mon 🔽 Tue 🔽 Wed	🕼 Thu 🔽 Fri 🔽 Sat	
Create Schedule					
Create From		Interval	Eonkinuous 💌		
Edit Schedule					
Instant Report					
User					
User Distribution					
User Group Vehicle Classification/Counters					
Home					
Definitions					
Reports				App	ey UK Cancel
	Ranaré àlum				
	Recent Alarma Alarm Histo	ory System Notes	Opticom [™] Current Users Incide	erk Trigger	
🛃 start 🔰 🙆 🔯 🌽 💈	🦉 🥑 🕒 📑 ATP		🍯 12 - Fail Config - Paint		🧟 🍆 10:23 AM